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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+=-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—2-2F ZT-——F T2 _T-—=F ZB—Q0OF
2010 201 2012 2013 2014
FET FxT FETT FET FTER
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

E RESULTS
A Revenue 58,607 74,475 93,844 95,074 116,817
E A Gross profit 38,433 44,387 54,424 52,238 62,471
b BT 15 7 B & A Profit before income tax 12,785 15,148 16,566 15,081 18,068
FEHiAX Income tax expense (2,572) (2,695) (2,568) (3,390) (4,088)
& 7935 Fl Profit for the year 10,213 12,453 13,998 11,691 13,980
R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
“E-%FF T ZT-—-F —T-—=F ZF—-QNF
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
TET FET FET TET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
1B E Total assets 112,611 144,445 168,862 192,382 232,275
waE Total liabilities (20,346) (45,105) (63,459) (81,732) (117,670)
& EFE Net assets 92,265 99,340 105,403 110,650 114,605

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 5




hFPHRE

Five-Year Financial Summary

U A

Total Revenue

(B&%=7T)
(US$ million)

20102014 BEEHRER
CAGR of 2010-2014

18.8.

2010 2011 2012 2013

2014

L ON P S

Revenue-Pafulin

(B@%T)
(US$ million)

2010-2014 HEFHRR
CAGR of 2010-2014

16.6.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

WA REKREF A

Revenue-Leflunomide tablets

(B8@%7T)
(US$ million)

2010-2014 BEFHRR
CAGR of 2010-2014

13.4

WA-BEEXEME DB

Revenue-Mycophenolate Mofetil Dispersible tablets

(B@%T)
(US$ million)

2010-2014 HEFHRR
CAGR of 2010-2014

94.6.

2010 2011 2012 2013

2014

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

6

Annual Report 2014 F %R

# Officially launched in May 2010
# 201045 B IERH#H
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Financial Highlights

—E-NF —F—= 2B
2014 2013 Change
FE(FER : Results (US$'000):
WA Revenue 116,817 95,074 +22.9%
£ A Gross profit 62,471 52,238 +19.6%
R A Profit from operations 18,922 15,144 +25.0%
B BT 15 %54 A & A Profit before income tax 18,068 15,081 +19.8%
KRAREE A Profit attributable to owners of
P& 15 % F the Company 13,980 11,691 +19.6%
BRIgE D : Profitability:
E F &= Gross profit margin 53.5% 54.9% -1.4%
4R = Net profit margin 12.0% 12.3% -0.3%
TR R E A Basic earnings per share
(Z=1L) (US cents) 3.4 2.8 +0.6
B MR (FHExT) - Financial Position (US$°000):
BEE Total assets 232,275 192,382 +20.7%
PAN/NEIEF DN Equity attributable to owners of
FEAL HE = the Company 114,605 110,650 +3.6%
BEE Total liabilities 117,670 81,732 +44.0%
Re RiRITHE Cash and bank balances 42,891 25,487 +68.3%
REBESHRR : Liquidity:
BN E (%) Current ratio (times) 11 1.2 -0.1
F B A & Net debt-to-equity ratio* 36.6% 29.8% +6.8%

* FaERRILX=(EE-ReRRTEHR -BHE  ~
PR A R MR R

Net debt-to-equity ratio = (borrowings — cash and bank balances — pledged
other receivables)/total equity

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 7
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WA

HeE o RAHN229%

[ | '11‘50\ o Revenue increased by 22.9%
evenue
(658 miten

2013 2014

2 EUA

Segment Revenue

W EhE W EVRERRRER W EftER
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(B&=x7T) (BE%T) (B&%7T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

+24.8%

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014

4

PN i

Segment Profits

W ER#E B ENRRERRER W Ht#Eem
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(B&%x7) (B&%7T) (B&%7T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
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F R R AR =
Profit for the year and Net profit margin
W W aRE

Net Profit Net profit margin

(B8%1) (%)

(US$ million)

2013 2014

BREE
Dividend per share (DPS)

W FHSRRE
Interim DPS
(fl)

(HK cents)

B REsKRES
Final DPS
(B
(HK cents)

2013 2014

REERFEE

Total assets and Net assets

W FRBEE W RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(B8x1) (A8%r1) (B8x1)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2013

2014

BAA B AR )

BB mE
Financial Highlights

20145 4L 7 $8 1019.6%

AR 2O 4 0.3%

Net profit increased by 19.6% in 2014
Net profit margin decreased by 0.3%

P HIRR B R AR9.54
EEAHRERERS74E

Interim dividend of HK 9.54 cents per share
Proposed final dividend of HK 8.74 cents per share

HEERIN207%
FEEEIN3.6%

Total assets increased by 20.7%
Net assets increased by 3.6%

& ABBRAF Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of the
Group to all shareholders of the Company.

In 2014, the Group recorded total turnover of US$116.8 million, up
by 22.9% over last year. Despite of rising costs of raw materials and
other costs, the Group managed to increase its profit by 19.6% to
approximately US$14.0 million. Its core business of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceuticals achieved satisfactory sales with
Pafulin, Leflunomide tablets and Mycophenolate Mofetil Dispersible
tablets having record high sales, up by 20.7%.

During 2014, the Chinese Government issued a number of reform
policies in relation to the pharmaceutical industry, adding new
drivers to this seemingly traditional industry. The development of the
pharmaceutical industry was in line with the latest trend of China’s
economic development: shift in speed of growth — changing from
high speed to medium yet compared to the rest of the world still rapid
development. To further develop this industry, additional reforms,
adjustment and innovation are required. The vast healthcare market
remains poised for unprecedented development. Under the “new norm”
of China’s economy, operators have to be innovative in order to stay in
the industry and seize the opportunities. The Group will keep abreast
of the policy reforms of the country to focus on the rheumatology
business in which it enjoys an edge under the support of Lansen’s “all-
round immunity and all-round healthcare” strategy. In the meantime, the
Group is enhancing its rapid development in the dermatology field and
adopts a multi-product sales mode for faster and greater development.

2014 marked a fruitful year for the Group in its expansion into the
dermatology field. It secured the exclusive agency distribution right
and brand use right in certain regions of China of the Kefumei series
of Shaanxi Biogene Technology Co. Ltd.. Besides, it has also acquired
the entire interest of Sicorten Plus in the China market from Novartis.
Dermatology was the second strategic business area that Lansen entered
into after making its strong foothold in the rheumatology sector. Agency
rights and acquisitions strategically can help accelerate Lansen’s faster
penetration into the dermatological and skin care product market and
expand its specialty pharmaceutical product portfolio, laying a solid
foundation for future growth.
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Chairman’s Statement

In the meantime, the Group remained focused on its rheumatology
business in which it has an edge. During the year, the Group entered into
a contract with Hunan Warrant Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and secured
a 10-year agency distribution right of its Guangwei (Mycophenolate
Mofetil Dispersible tablets) throughout China. The Group also entered
into a 10-year exclusive agency distribution agreement with Dalian Merro
Pharmaceutical Factory for distribution of its Hepai (Leflunomide tablets)
product across the country. The addition of Guangwei and Hepai would
further compliment the Company’s product line of rheumatic drugs and
ensure our leading position in the sector.

OUTLOOK

With the Central Government'’s increasing control over spending on
healthcare, the price of drugs will face greater downward pressure. In
the meantime, other factors such as the enhancement of production
technology by Lansen and the rising costs of raw materials of Chinese
medicine will have certain impact on the gross profit margin of the Group
for the coming year. Meanwhile, during this transitional period in which
new products are being launched and promoted, it is inevitable that the
sales and gross profit for the first half of the year will be affected.

Looking into the future, under the combined effect of ageing population,
urbanisation, accumulation of wealth and higher spending on
healthcare committed by the Government, the development of China’s
pharmaceutical industry will remain steady. The new healthcare reform
will continue to increase the geographical coverage of healthcare across
the country and the level of protection.

It is expected that the price of drugs will continue to drop while hospitals
will gradually reduce their reliance on income generated by sale of drugs.
The Group will make timely and appropriate adjustment to its strategy
according to the development of the market.

Lansen will continue to optimise its marketing model for specialty
pharmaceuticals, make use of regional academic promotional advantages to
enhance market brand awareness of its products, and enhance the product
marketing knowledge and professional competence of the sales team, in
order to maintain its leading market position. Meanwhile, the Group will also
further strengthen the standard of compliance and the monitoring of daily
operational activities.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1
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In terms of the business development of specialty pharmaceuticals,
the Group will continue to develop other disease-modifying drugs and
drugs for autoimmune-related diseases through acquisition, agency
arrangements and independent research and development, and
cooperation with domestic and overseas pharmaceutical enterprises.

Management will adhere to its “all-round healthcare” strategy. More
resources will be devoted to plant extract and healthcare products and
the brand awareness and product image will be improved. Meanwhile,
production processes will be strictly controlled to increase customers’
confidence in the Group’s quality products.

Management is committed to enhancing the development of our
staff. Human resources strategy will be given greater prominence.
Management will implement a more systematic, professional and
efficient management approach. Also, management will create a more
transparent and personal management culture. Benign competition
and innovation will be promoted and more attention will be given to
the frontline sales staff with a view to bringing new momentum to the
development of the Company.

Looking forward into the future, the Group will proactively seize the
opportunities ushered in by the State’s healthcare system reforms and
strive to make itself an outstanding listed company with long-term
competitiveness and disciplined management. We are committed to
achieving better results for coming years with the support and hard work
of our entire staff.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$116.8 million (2013:
US$95.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an
increase of 22.9% over last year. Profit for the year was approximately
US$14.0 million (2013: US$11.7 million), representing an increase of
19.6% over last year.

The turnover of the specialty pharmaceuticals segment increased by
22.9% over last year, while the segment profit increased by 13.9%.
The three major specialty products of Lansen recorded a total revenue
of US$66.4 million (2013: US$55.0 million), representing an increase
of 20.7% over last year. In 2014, as marketing activities resumed, the
specialty pharmaceuticals business enhanced its nationwide academic
promotion campaigns. The sales of the three core pharmaceuticals of
the Group (Pafulin, Leflunomide tablets and Mycophenolate Mofetil
Dispersible tablets) resumed double digit growth. The profit growth
rate of specialty pharmaceuticals segment declined due to the upfront
promotional expenses for the new product, Kefumei, and the increase in
the production cost of Pafulin.

The turnover of the plant extract and healthcare products segment
increased by 24.8% over last year and the segment profit grew
by 46.0%. With social advancement and economic development,
people are increasingly concerned about their own health. Healthcare
consumption of Chinese people has increased year by year and
nutritional supplements are in high demand, which is beneficial to
the further growth and development of plant extract and healthcare
products business.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 3
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The turnover from other pharmaceuticals segment increased by 16.5%
over last year, while the segment profit decreased by 28.6%. The
gynecological products in the other pharmaceuticals segment, especially
our featured product, Bazhen Keli, show good growth momentum. With
certain gynecological products being included in the National Essential
Drugs List, the business is expected to experience healthy growth in the
future.

Rapid reform of China’s pharmaceutical industry

2014 is a year mixed with adjustment, challenges and opportunities for
China’s pharmaceutical industry.

In February 2014, the State Council held an executive meeting, resolving
to merge the New Rural Cooperative Medical Insurance Scheme (the
“NCMS") and the Urban Resident Social Pension Scheme into a unified
national system, namely a basic pension insurance system for urban and
rural residents. The merge of the NCMS and the Urban Resident Social
Pension Scheme indicates that it will not take a long time to integrate
the Urban Employee Basic Medical Insurance Programme, the Urban
Resident Basic Medical Insurance Programme and the NCMS (i.e., “three-
in-one”). Once “three-in-one” is implemented, the per capita funding
gap between participants in the NCMS and urban residents will be
narrowed, thus creating demand for pharmaceuticals and bringing a
substantial increment in the pharmaceutical market.

In April 2014, the National Development and Reform Commission (the
“NDRC") released the Circular on Issues concerning Improving Price
Management of Low-price Drugs. It stipulated that the maximum retail
price restriction on low-price drugs would be cancelled and producers
and operators are allowed to determine the specific purchase and
selling prices based on their own production cost and market supply
and demand for drugs, subject to a ceiling of the prescribed standard
of the average daily costs, so as to cultivate a pricing mechanism which
reflects market supply and demand in a flexible way. The Group has a
total of six types of drugs in the Low-price Drugs List, including our major
gynecological product Bazhen Keli. The Group believes that this circular
will be beneficial to the development of and will generate a higher profit
margin of our generic drugs business.

In May 2014, the China Food and Drug Administration (the “CFDA")
released the Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Internet
Food and Drug Business Operation (Exposure Draft), pursuant to which
the threshold for online drug sales has been relaxed. Management
believes that as the qualification requirements for third-party transaction
platforms relax, the pharmaceutical e-commerce market will play a
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decisive role in resource deployment in the future. Lansen will also seize
this opportunity to build up its pharmaceutical e-commerce transaction
platform.

In June 2014, the newly revised Regulations on the Supervision and
Administration over Medical Devices officially came into effect. Based
on classified administration and in adherence to the degree of risk, such
regulations make greater revisions to improve classified administration,
reduce pre-approvals appropriately, increase the responsibilities of
producing and operating enterprises and using units, strengthen daily
supervision and improve liability clarification. Management believes
that the revisions reflect the determination of the State to attach great
importance to and enhancement of food and drug supervision efforts.
At the same time, by improving the relevant administration system and
encouraging innovation and upgrading of medical devices, the sound
development of the medical device industry will be promoted.

In August 2014, the CFDA released a notice about its requirement for
reinforcing regulations over Chinese medicine extraction and related
extracts. Such notice stipulated that from 1 January 2016, Chinese
patent medicine manufacturers shall not purchase Chinese medicine
extracts without filing for production purpose. Where Chinese patent
medicine manufacturers use Chinese medicine extracts with filing for
production purpose, they shall carry out quality evaluation and vendor
audit according to GMP requirements. Administrative management of
Chinese medicine extracts will no longer be based on approval numbers,
except for those active ingredients and effective parts of traditional
Chinese medicines approved as per approved new drugs. Where Chinese
patent medicine manufacturers fail to practise standard feed production,
or purchase and use Chinese medicine extracts in lieu of processed
Chinese raw materials for production, relevant products will be treated as
fake medicines. Management believes that this notice will be conducive
to the development of our plant extraction business.

In November 2014, the People’s Bank of China decided to cut Renminbi
benchmark lending and deposit rates for financial institutions from 22
November 2014. The cut in interest rates is expected to revive the weak
demand in the Chinese pharmaceutical market. To put it in a broader
perspective, the pharmaceutical market may have stepped towards the
end of bear market.
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The nearly 20-year-old medicine pricing control policy is likely to end
on the New Year’s Day of 2015. On 25 November 2014, the NDRC
issued the “Medicine Pricing Reform Programme (Exposure Draft)”,
preparing to lift the caps on medicine retail prices, to control medicare
costs by open bidding, and ultimately to form medicine prices through
market competition. While the Chinese government intends to steer
the medicine pricing toward a market-oriented mechanism, after
lifting the current pricing controls, medicine pricing is still subject to
the requirements for controlling medicare costs and open bidding, and
medical institutions may participate as negotiators in the new pricing
process.

In short, the changes in the Chinese national policies in 2014, such as
the proposed lifting of medicine price controls, proposed ease-up on
selling medicines via the Internet and the promotion of market-oriented
healthcare reform, make the apparently traditional pharmaceutical
industry full of vigor and vitality. It is clear that the market will play a
decisive role in the allocation of resources, so as to improve the operation
efficiency of the pharmaceutical industry as well as to solve the two
major problems of “poor access” and “high fee”. Development of the
pharmaceutical industry seems to fit the characteristics of the new
normal Chinese economy growing into a shift period from high growth
to relatively high growth, with industrial development being driven by
reform, restructuring and innovation.

There are unprecedented opportunities in China’s huge healthcare
market. However in the “new normal” economy, only those innovative
enterprises can adapt to the times and capitalise on opportunities. The
Group will keep abreast of the national policies and regulations. With
the “all-round immunity and all-round healthcare” strategy, Lansen is set
to focus on rheumatology and actively promote our rapid development
in the dermatology area, attempting to seek faster growth and greater
development by means of multi-mode product lines.

Expand coverage in the dermatology area

In March 2014, Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Ningbo Lansen”), the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, obtained from
Shaanxi Biogene Technology Co. Ltd. the exclusive agency distribution
right and brand usage right of its Kefumei series in certain regions in
China. Human-like collagen dressing (Kefumei) products are mainly for
the suppression and mitigation of skin inflammation responses caused by
various reasons such as dermatitis, sensitive skin, acne and laser therapy.
Lansen will continue to capitalise on its promotion model combining
academic marketing and patient education in order to increase its share
in the cosmeceutical (Medical Consumables) market.
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In March 2014, Lansen entered into an agreement with Novartis,
pursuant to which Lansen acquired the entire interest of Sicorten Plus
product in the PRC market. The product is a medicinal cream marketed
and sold in the region of China under the trademark of “Sicorten
Plus”. It is @ compound cream of Halometasone and Triclosan, and
as a commonly used drug in dermatology, it is primarily used to treat
certain corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary
infection. Dermatology field is Lansen’s second business strategic
area, in addition to rheumatology. Over the past three years, Lansen’s
existing skin products such as Yuze have gained a good reputation
in the dermatology field in the PRC. Acquisition of Sicorten Plus from
Novartis would bring Lansen the opportunity to further expand into the
dermatology market, broaden its specialty drug portfolios and provide
growth prospects in the long run.

According to the announcement issued by the Company on 31 March
2014, the transfer date of Sicorten Plus was expected to complete prior
to the end of 2014. However, due to the delay in importing Novartis’
products and the delay in transferring the registration, the transfer date
of the product will be postponed. Novartis will continue to provide
transitional services to Lansen during the transition period and transfer
the relevant net profit to Lansen. As Lansen is not able to carry out
marketing activities during the transition period, management expects
that the postponement of the transfer date will affect the net profit of
the Group for 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the income recorded for the
new products Kefumei and Sicorten Plus were US$1,525,000 and
US$729,000 respectively. Management believes both Kefumei and
Sicorten Plus will bring significant contribution to the Group’s sales and
profit in the future.

In January 2015, Lansen and Bausch & Lomb (China) executed a
tentative agreement, pursuant to which Bausch & Lomb (China) agreed
to grant to Lansen the exclusive agency distribution right of its US
imported cosmetics Cerave and other related series products that will
be subsequently launched by Bausch & Lomb (China) in China for a term
of 8 years. As a result, Lansen will further expand its coverage in the
dermatology area.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 7
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Expand the Group’s rheumatic product line

In June 2014, Ningbo Lansen entered into a distribution agreement
with Hunan Warrant Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., pursuant to which
Ningbo Lansen obtained the national dealership right of Guangwei
(Mycophenolate Mofetil Dispersible Tablets) for a term of ten years. This
is set to further expand the Company’s rheumatic product line.

In December 2014, Ningbo Lansen entered into an exclusive national
agency distribution agreement with Dalian Merro Pharmaceutical Factory
in respect of the dealership of Hepai (Leflunomide tablets) for a term of
ten years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2024, while the existing
distribution agreement relating to Tuoshu (Leflunomide tablets) had not
been renewed. Execution of the aforementioned agreement signals that
the Group is committed to maintaining the leflunomide tablets in its
DMARDs product portfolio and its market share in the PRC. This will give
the Group the exclusive right to continue to distribute another leading
brand of leflunomide tablets, which will replace Tuoshu, for a term of 10
years in the PRC. The Group will market and promote Hepai to hospitals
in the PRC, leveraging on the Group’s distribution network for its core
pharmaceutical product, Pafulin. The Group is expected to benefit from
the gradual increase in the sales of Hepai for the DMARDs products of
the Group.

Focus on research and development as well as
innovation

In September 2014, the R&D team of Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction
Technology Limited (“Liwah Zhiti”), the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, was awarded the title of Enterprise Technology Innovation
Team of Ningbo City. This indicates that the R&D team of Liwah Zhiti
has technology innovation as a well established core value. This along
with Liwah Zhiti's emphasis on team building will generate fruitful results
which foster continuous growth.

Operating in the plant extraction industry for years, Liwah Zhiti has
accumulated comprehensive experience and modern technologies.
Its priorities in the future will include the continuous research and
development on automation and control system technology of modern
Chinese medicine production, enhancement of research on quality
standards of modern Chinese medicine, plant extraction product
development and healthcare product development. The Group is
dedicated to developing natural products which are safe, reliable and
energy-efficient and to lead the industry in technological development in
order to build a first-class plant extraction innovation team.
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In October 2014, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Ningbo Liwah"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was once
again recognised as a National High Technology Enterprise by the
Ministry of Science and Technology. Furthermore, Liwah's Rheumatology
Specialty Pharmaceuticals R&D Team was awarded jointly by Science and
Technology Bureau of Ningbo and Finance Bureau of Ningbo the title of
“2014 Science and Technology Innovation Team of Ningbo City (Level II)”,
which represents the top prize for contribution to science and technology
in the city.

Complete production base upgrade and
transformation project

In line with the implementation of the New National Good
Manufacturing Practice Standards (“New GMP"), Ningbo Liwah has been
actively promoting the upgrade and transformation of its production
base. This project officially gained the GMP accreditation and was
granted the certificate in January 2014. The GMP review approval
evidenced that both the software and hardware of Ningbo Liwah's
quality production system meet the new standards stipulated by the
State, laying a solid foundation for the Company’s future development.

With the granting of the New GMP accreditation in early 2014,
Ningbo Liwah formulated a new quality control plan. By rearranging
the Company’s quality management structure and establishing an
efficient quality inspection process, standardisation of production and
quality standardisation can be achieved. Meanwhile, training for the
entire workforce has been initiated to raise the awareness of the entire
workforce over the GMP norms and promote the implementation of the
GMP norms.

Besides, Ningbo Lansen successfully obtained the Medical Device
Marketing Enterprise Licence, hence expanding its business scope.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 9
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In November 2014, Ningbo Lansen gained new GSP accreditation after
a site inspection. In China, GSP is known as “Good Supplying Practice
of Pharmaceutical Products”, which represents a management system
developed for the pharmaceutical distribution process ranging from
planned purchase, purchase inspection, storage, to sales and after-
sales service in order to ensure that pharmaceuticals are in compliance
with relevant quality standards. Essentially speaking, it practises a strict
management system, that is, to conduct quality control throughout
the whole operation process of a pharmaceutical business, ensuring
to provide users with premium pharmaceuticals. Having drawn on the
pharmaceutical distribution regulatory policies adopted by the World
Health Organization, the United States, the European Union and other
developed countries, the new GSP further raised quality management
requirements for enterprises, including to effectively strengthen risk
control over the pharmaceutical distribution process and to enhance
the overall standards and requirements for business software and
hardware. As a result, the threshold for market access was raised with
a view to suppressing redundant production capacities at low level,
facilitating structural adjustment of the industry, and increasing market
concentration. The introduction of the new GSP will prove effective
against those enterprises performing subpar in quality assurance,
eliminating scattered, small-scale, and disordered business activities in
the pharmaceuticals distribution sector, and at the same time leaving
large pharmaceutical companies an opportunity to gain more market
share while reducing the number of poorly run competitors. Through
the new GSP accreditation, Ningbo Lansen has effectively enhanced its
overall competitiveness, laying a solid foundation for the Company'’s
future development.

Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
between Liwah Zhiti and Haotian to renew for three
years

According to the existing Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement entered into between Liwah Zhiti and Yangling Haotian Bio-
engineering Technology Co. Limited. (“Yangling Haotian”) and Xian
Haotian Bio-engineering Technology Co. Limited. (“Xian Haotian"),
Liwah Zhiti agreed to purchase and the Suppliers agreed to produce
and sell the plant extract products to Liwah Zhiti. The original Entrusted
Manufacturing Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.
On 17 December 2014, Liwah Zhiti and the Suppliers entered into a
renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement for a further
term of three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (subject
to any early termination or extension by mutual consent) to renew the
supply arrangements. The 2015 Annual Cap, the 2016 Annual Cap and
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the 2017 Annual Cap under the renewed Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement will not exceed RMB29 million, RMB29 million
and RMB29 million respectively.

Further details of the above transactions are set out in the Report of the
Directors in this annual report.

Stable development of Starry

Following the adjustment period in 2013, Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) started to pick up in 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2014, Starry contributed approximately US$2.2 million to the
Group's net profit after tax, representing an increase of 35.6% over
last year. As the new production lines came on stream in 2013 and the
normal provision of goods to customers has resumed, it is expected that
Starry’s future sales and profit contribution will grow steadily.

Financial Review
Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$116.8 million (2013: US$95.1
million) for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase
of 22.9% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue generated from specialty
pharmaceuticals amounted to US$70.7 million (2013: US$57.6 million),
representing an increase of 22.9% over last year. Revenue generated
from plant extract and healthcare products amounted to US$35.9 million
(2013: US$28.7 million), representing an increase of 24.8% over last
year, while revenue generated from other pharmaceuticals amounted
to US$10.2 million (2013: US$8.8 million), representing an increase of
16.5% over last year.

The increase in the Group's revenue during the period was mainly due
to the following reasons: 1) the increase in sales activities in respect of
specialty pharmaceuticals business. The aggregate revenue from the
three core products (Pafulin, Leflunomide tablets and Mycophenolate
Mofetil Dispersible tablets) amounted to US$66.4 million (2013: US$55.0
million), increased by 20.7% as compared to the corresponding period
last year and representing approximately 56.8% of the total revenue of
the Group; and 2) as a result of the rising demand for natural products,
revenue generated from plant extract and healthcare products increased
by US$7.2 million to US$35.9 million, representing approximately 30.7%
of the total revenue of the Group.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2 1
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Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a gross profit
of US$62.5 million (2013: US$52.2 million), representing an increase of
19.6% over last year, which is in line with revenue growth.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the overall gross profit margin of
the Group was 53.5% (2013: 54.9%), representing a decrease of 1.4%
over last year.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin as compared to the
corresponding period last year was mainly attributable to the increase
in the cost of raw materials, packaging materials, depreciation expenses
and direct labour costs as compared to last year, resulting in an increase
in the production cost of our products.

Other income

Other income, primarily including transition income, government
grants and interest income from bank deposits, amounted to US$3.6
million (2013: US$2.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014,
representing an increase of 38.3% over last year. Government grants
primarily came from the local government and were partly used as
recognition of the Group's efforts in developing high-technology
pharmaceutical products. Transition income represented the transfer of
profit generated from the sales of pharmaceutical product by Novartis.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, selling and distribution expenses
of the Group amounted to US$33.5 million (2013: US$27.7 million),
representing an increase of 20.8% over last year. The increase in selling
and distribution expenses is in line with the increase in revenue. Selling
and distribution expenses to revenue ratio decreased from 29.2% in
2013 t0 28.7% in 2014.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of specialty pharmaceuticals are the key factors
in maintaining its leading market position. The Group endeavoured to
enhance market recognition of specialty pharmaceutical products and
actively carried out patient education activities. By organising academic
conferences across China, doctors and patients were able to have a
better understanding of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of
these products.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to US$13.7 million (2013: US$12.0 million), representing an
increase of 14.1% over last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to inflation and the expansion of the Group's scale of
operation.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2014, finance costs of the Group
increased by US$1.4 million, mainly due to the increase in average bank
borrowings.

Share of post-tax profit of an associate

Share of post-tax profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2014 amounted to US$2.2 million (2013: US$1.6 million), representing an
increase of 35.6% over last year.

As the new production lines came on stream in 2013 and the provision
of goods to customers has resumed to normal, management is optimistic
about the future development of Starry.

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah obtained the certification as a high technology enterprise
and enjoyed a preferential income tax rate of 15% since 1 January 2010.
In addition, Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited (“Bozhou Lansen”) is
engaged in certain qualified agricultural business in the PRC with relevant
profits exempted from enterprise income tax.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “EIT Law"” ) and the implementation rules for the income tax
law, except for Ningbo Liwah and Bozhou Lansen, the enterprise income
tax rate for other subsidiaries in China was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 increased by 19.6% or US$2.3 million to US$14.0 million
from US$11.7 million last year.
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and resorts
to external financing including bank borrowings from time to time when
the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2014, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately US$13.2 million (31 December 2013: US$19.3
million) and 1.1 (31 December 2013: 1.2) respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$15.8 million (31 December 2013: US$11.0 million). As
at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$27.1
million (31 December 2013: US$14.5 million) to secure bank borrowings.

The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2014 amounted to US$84.8
million (31 December 2013: US$59.2 million) which is fully repayable
within 1 year (31 December 2013: fully repayable within 1 year).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's net debt-to-equity ratio was
36.6% (31 December 2013: 29.8%), calculated by net debt (borrowings
minus cash and bank balances and pledged other receivables) at the end
of the period over total equity.

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign currency
risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the
subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the respective functional
currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, management would closely
monitor foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank deposits, bill receivables, other
receivables, buildings and plants and prepaid land lease payment in
an aggregate carrying amount of US$50.1 million (31 December 2013:
US$31.0 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities and bank
borrowings.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's capital expenditure contracted for
but not reflected in the financial statements amounted to US$6.7 million
(31 December 2013: US$4.0 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited (“LMHK"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Novartis entered into (i)
the asset purchase agreement, pursuant to which Novartis agreed to
transfer to LMHK the Transferred Assets, and (ii) the licence agreement
to grant the licences relating to the pharmaceutical product in the
Territory. The Transferred Assets included (i) the Swiss Marketing
Authorisation; (ii) know-how, books and records, specified trademarks,
commercial information and medical information relating exclusively to
the Pharmaceutical Product and/or Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
in the Territory but not including any of the Licenced Assets; and (iii)
the Continuing Third Party Agreement. The total cash consideration of
the transaction comprised an upfront payment of US$8.0 million, plus
additional milestone payments of a total maximum amount of US$1.5
million, which would be linked to sales achieved by LMHK following the
Closing Date. In connection with the Asset Purchase Agreement, LMHK
also entered into the Supply Agreement with Novartis on 28 March
2014, pursuant to which Novartis agrees to supply the Transition Services
to LMHK during a maximum two-year Transition Period.
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Details of the above transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 March 2014 and all capitalised terms used above shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the announcement.

Apart from the transaction mentioned above, there were no material
acquisitions and disposals of any subsidiaries and associates of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Human resources

The Group had over 880 employees as at 31 December 2014. Staff
remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances, medical
insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to individual
performance, professional qualifications, experience in the industry and
relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees have been maintained at a competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labour market and
economic situation. The Group provides career advancement training in
the form of internal courses and workshops for the staff and encourages
the staff to participate in training programmes related to the Group’s
business.
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Executive Director

Mr. LIU Bang Min, age 43, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Liu
joined our Group in September 2012 and has over 19 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu
worked with GlaxoSmithKline China, Wyeth Pharmaceutical China and
Abbott China. He is experienced in the field of rheumatology and the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical
imaging from Zhejiang University School of Medicine (formerly Zhejiang
Medical University) in 1993.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 75, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay International
Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-executive director
of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly the managing director
of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt,
a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in international
management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president
and area general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in Hong
Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong Kong
Government'’s International Business Committee, and from 1989 to 1991
was a member of the Hong Kong Government's Advisory Committee on
Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of the American Chamber of
Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt also served as a member of
the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange from
November 2004 to June 2011. Since October 2012, Mr. Hunt has been a
director and Chief Executive Officer of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private
investment company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained
a bachelor of arts degree from Duke University in 1961 and a master’s
degree in international affairs from Columbia University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi, age 57, is a non-executive Director and deputy chairman
of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January 2010 and is
the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in
the banking industry and held various senior management positions
with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has been
a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the CIH
Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive officer of
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and half years and a director
of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Lee was
the managing director and China senior country officer of J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management Committee
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung Bank is listed on
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Harvard University in 1984.

Mr. TANG Jun, age 55, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been working in the
business development department, responsible for exploring investment
opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries for our Group. Currently,
Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of business development of
the CIH Group. Mr. Tang is also acting as chairman for Ningbo Liwah,
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”),
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Lansen”) and
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited (“Lansen
Technology). Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from
Hangzhou University in 1982, a master of philosophy degree from Beijing
Normal University in 1986 and a licentiate degree in law from Lapland
University, Finland in 1993.
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Ms. TAO Fang Fang, age 44, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007. Ms. Tao became
a professional accountant and a registered accountant in 1996 and
1998 respectively. Before being promoted to the position of director of
finance department of a leading pharmaceutical group in China, Ms.
Tao worked as financial controller for a manufacturing company and
financial manager for a marketing and sales company under the control
of that group. Ms. Tao graduated from the department of accounting of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 1992.

Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca, age 56, is a non-executive Director of
our Company, company secretary of CIH, vice president and head of
asset management of the CIH Group. Ms. Yip is responsible for the
management of the operations of the CIH Group's invested projects. Ms.
Yip is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1994, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since 1991, and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since 2008. Ms. Yip is also an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since 1988 and The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining
the CIH Group in February 1994, Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor
and tax consultant for 7 years. Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College
where she obtained a diploma in business administration and accounting
in 1981 and a honours diploma in accounting in 1983.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in
information technology of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate or
member of the following professional bodies: The Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Life Management Institute. He is also a certified
information systems auditor with the Information Systems Audit and
Control Association and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior
advisor of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August 2014. Mr.
Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine
CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and his last position
was general manager, compliance. He was the head of internal audit
of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head
of compliance in Greater China, managing director of DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial controller of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the director of Quality
Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group compliance of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited from December 2006
to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher diploma in accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.

Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond, age 66, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has been in the executive search field since 1985 when
he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates. Mr. Tang
was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds Associates
until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr. Tang was educated
in the United States at Tufts University in Boston, Massachusetts where
he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972; and he graduated with
a master’s degree in public health from the Yale University School of
Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr. Tang has served as
a member of non-governmental organisations such as the Hong Kong
Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational Qualifications.
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Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 65, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’' experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical
career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig
Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was the
chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008. He was
responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in 2008.
From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of Invida
Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of Australian
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was the Asia
representative on the board of directors of the International Federation
of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was regional
director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division of Alliance
Boots and was also a director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Horlacher is a non-
executive member of the Advisory Board of BSN Medical, a global
medical device company based in Hamburg, Germany, since January
2013. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana Institute in
Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.

Senior Management

Mr. MUI Chi Hung, age 48, is the company secretary, chief financial
officer and authorised representative of our Company. Mr. Mui joined
our Group in November 2010. Mr. Mui has over 20 years of experience
in financing, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Mui held various senior positions in different listed groups and
international accounting firms, including PricewaterhouseCoopers, Far
East Consortium Group and Rising Development Group, where he spent
7 years serving as a financial controller, company secretary and executive
director. Mr. Mui obtained his bachelor’s degree in management
majoring in accounting from the University of Lethbridge in Canada
and his master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Mui is currently a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. ZHOU Rong, age 45, is the senior vice president of the Group and
general manager of Liwah Zhiti. Mr. Zhou joined our Group in December
2001 and has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhou was employed by a company within
the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1991 to 2001. Mr. Zhou obtained
his bachelor’s degree in heating, ventilation and air-conditioning
engineering from Shenyang Architectural and Civil Engineering Institute
in 1991.

Mr. XU Guang, age 40, is the general manager of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Xu
joined the Group in January 2002 and has over 15 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xu was
employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1998 to
2001. Mr. Xu graduated in 1996 from Xinjiang Institute of Finance and
Economics with a marketing major.

Mr. CHEN Xiao Yun, age 45, is the vice president of marketing and
business development of the Group. Mr. Chen joined our Group in
April 2013 and has over 23 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was the marketing director
of Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor of engineering degree majoring in pharmaceutical chemistry
from China Pharmaceutical University in 1992 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Fudan University in 1999.

Mr. ZHU Di Han, age 40, is the human resources director of the
Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in April 2013 and has over 17 years’
experience in human resources. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhu was
the senior manager of Pfizer Investment Co. Ltd from 2005 to 2013.
Mr. Zhu graduated in 1997 from Beijing Union University with a textile
engineering major.

Mr. Li Wei Jun, age 36, is the director of business operations of the
Group and executive deputy general manager of Liwah Zhiti. Mr. Li
joined our Group in January 2002 and has 15 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Before joining our Group, Mr. Li was employed
by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 2000 to 2001. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in management majoring in accounting
from Xiamen University in 2000.

Mr. CHENG Hua Zhong, age 42, is the director of internal control and
compliance of the Group. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in December
2001 and has over 18 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheng was employed by a company
within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1996 to 2001. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor of science degree in computer science majoring in
information science from Fudan University in 1996.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in notes 20 and 33 to the
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 67.

An interim dividend of HK9.54 cents (approximately US1.23 cents) per
share amounting to HK$39,591,000 (approximately US$5,107,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8.74
cents (approximately US1.13 cents) per share to the shareholders on the
register of members of the Company on 15 June 2015, amounting to
HK$36,271,000 (approximately US$4,676,000) in aggregate, subject to
approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to US$28,497,000, of which approximately
US$4,676,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Details
of the movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total sales
and sales from the largest customer included therein amounted to 11.0%
(2013: 9.8%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 44.6% (2013: 43.8%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 15.0% (2013: 14.1%).

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group'’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director:
Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca and Ms. Tao Fang
Fang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

RERBEBBRIBECTRE Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BEERT MAATEERIT

BEEHA g5 LERER BARZED

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity shares held Company

FEBELE Em#EBA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (a7 =)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt %t A& EmEBA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (IFE)

txﬁﬁ%%%'F:* mE+=-—A=+
CEEEREBRE ARAR RS EE M

m%£lzgﬂhf RS E R E

HHEBREE SR BAEEPIE35216 8 F AR 8%

ZEH% KR &mﬁim%ﬁA§$

ETBREHFR %mﬁ SFRIZEME AR

R ZEMERIAE -

(Long position)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31
December 2014 which was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.
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BEERTT HMAATEET
ZEREAR BEZED L

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

BIREIR B A E RIHE (PR BRAA]
("2 2= B8 e 88 2 (R ) 1)

Cathay International Pharma Manufacture
and Distribution (China) Limited

("Cl Pharma China")

BEEREEEMRMEEXER AT

EES0 =33

Cathay International Changchun
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical (China)

Limited (“CIC")

BZRBEEREEY MR EZ (PR BRAF
(BB R AEY Bl &R 2% (hE)])
Cathay International Biotechnology &
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China"”)
B R B R B8 B B PR A A ([ 22 B R 8 4% )
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited

(“ClP”)

BEHEEREMRMER AR (EZEEK

£y Al

Cathay International Biotech Company

Limited (“CIB")

Cathay International Holdings Limited

("CIH")

Cathay International Enterprises Limited

("CIE")

Wu Zhen Tao

=
Cheng Hoo

Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited

(“Loyal Peace”)

KA R AT

Ever Sail Limited

B N4 4dE Az
EREDS

Beneficial interest

TEEBEES
Interest of a controlled
corporation

LB RS
Interest of a controlled
corporation

LB RS
Interest of a controlled
corporation
LB
Interest of a controlled
corporation

R EEER

Interest of a controlled
corporation

R EE R

Interest of a controlled
corporation

PRETAIPARET
2@ A

Founder of discretionary
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust

R EEER

Interest of a controlled
corporation

BEmEm

Beneficial interest

i

issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company

209,820,000 50.56%
(45 8)

(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(FE)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 72)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(F7E)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(FE)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 =)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 =)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(37 2)

(Long position)

32,180,000 7.75%
(iFE)
(Long position)
32,180,000 7.75%
(57 R)
(Long position)
32,180,000 7.75%
(57 8)
(Long position)

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 37




FERHE
Report of the Directors

GEE

M ZEROABEFEEBEZEGE)FA BZER
BE(PE) HEEREREEER18%Em MAME
BB RS (hE) HE82% % - BHRH
BEEAORFZEREAYRMREX(TR)ES
100% 5w - R AR R EE (P E) R H
EREREE2 ARG MEXBEREEHEE%E
HEAENRMEEHA  REAHZEES °
It BREEREE  BHEEREDEMREE
B) BEREPREL  BERBEREYRMGRCAHKER
REEZERD 2 ER -

(2)  CIH#960.99% /2= MCIEFA » At - CIEHKR AR
EREREE (R RN ERER -

(3) CEZZEE#ETRABAWU Zhen Taost £ AWu
Zhen Tao%t & R HE Rk 8 2z 53 2 15 58 (TWu
KRAEZDES - tEAWURRAGETZAIHA -
Wu Zhen Tao%E A 1R AR CIEFRH A 2 B T %
BHES -

(4) KMBERAREEUNAEEE THRAERAMEER
BRELREER SHETEZRER /HEER
BAXGAZRRBERZIRA(ERERTD -
Loyal Peace % #f B2 & 17 IR AN Bk i A R A A+
5o

Loyal PeaceZ 2 EFB BT A KMBER ARIES
BEEEBEAZIAANES - MkMARAR B
SEEFEHRE - FAlt - B EEWR AR Loyal
PeacefTiZ BRI P HEE R -

R E XX EEE S B ERA L (KRAE
=R ERERERN EX[EERRG - 86
Pin K BHERE 2 # 5 MOR B —81) RAR R
MEEERD P ELHEEREZSFLARK
BIFE3B6IRB T AR HE 2 ERIORA -

3 8 Annual Report 2014 F %R

Notes:

(1) These shares are held by ClI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by ClI Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

(4) Ever Sail Limited, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the
benefit of certain current and former management personnel and employees
of the Group and/or their respective family and/or charity organisation (“the
Management Trust”). The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace is held by
Ever Sail Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace is held by Ever Sail Limited acting
as the trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng Hoo. Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Loyal Peace.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company. The Company regulates and manages such transactions in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 3 September 2013, Liwah Zhiti entered into an entrusted
manufacturing framework agreement (the “Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement”) with Yangling Haotian and Xian Haotian
(collectively referred as “Suppliers”). According to the Entrusted
Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti agreed to buy and
the Suppliers agreed to produce and sell the plant extract products to
Liwah Zhiti. It is contemplated that the plant extract products will be
used by the Group for the production of key ingredients for healthcare
products to be sold in the market by the Group.

On 17 December 2014, Liwah Zhiti and the Suppliers entered into a
renewed entrusted manufacturing framework agreement (the “Renewed
Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”) for a further term of
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (subject to any
early termination or extension by mutual consent) to renew the supply
arrangements.
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Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement

Date
3 September 2013 (Renewed on 17 December 2014)

Parties
(@  Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

(b)  Yangling Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company; and

(©)  Xian Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and the
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti
may, during the Term (as defined below), acquire from the Suppliers, the
plant extract products on an order-by-order basis. There is no minimum
purchase amount under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement, and Liwah Zhiti has no obligation to acquire the plant extract
products from the Suppliers nor are the Suppliers required to provide
them to Liwah Zhiti.

Pricing basis

For the plant extract products to be purchased by Liwah Zhiti from the
Suppliers under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, the
selling price per unit of the plant extract products shall be determined
by reference to the prevailing prices of the products in the market on
an order-by-order basis. Liwah Zhiti will follow its existing standard
purchasing procedures with third party suppliers in negotiating and
determining the purchase price with the Suppliers, which will involve
obtaining fee quotations from other independent third party suppliers in
the market and comparing them with those from the Suppliers.
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The supply of the Plant Extracts Products by the Suppliers shall be:

(@  on normal commercial terms and upon terms which are not less
favourable to Liwah Zhiti than terms available to Liwah Zhiti from
independent third parties supplying similar plant extract products
specified by Liwah Zhiti; and

(b) at a competitive pricing determined on arm’s length basis by
reference to the prevailing market price of the plant extract
products.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 3 September 2013 and expired on 31 December
2014. The Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2015 and will expire on 31 December 2017
(subject to any early termination or extension by mutual consent),
unless terminated by either party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
are set out below:

HE-_ZT—NF+_A=+T—HLEFENFELR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2014

A F#28,000,0007T
(#74,600,000% 7T)
RMB28,000,000

(approximately US$4.6 million)

HE T —NF+-_A=1T—RHLFENEBRRIEE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2014
A R #5,984,0007T
(#7974,000% 7T)

RMB5,984,000
(approximately US$974,000)

RIELTRAEI4A3BG - EFSCEHFAR
AZBMRAEE ZFEAERZETET
BRMEZERF ZHBMCAEZTGERZS
BFZEEER BIYFRTEECERHE
BREXHRZBMBE  IHIAZERS
DARRAN - EREAEXEHBRER KA
EBEREREZERGZHHEGRT L M
ERGRBRAFAREYMTAARARRZE

A -

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The
auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
Company in the ordinary and usual course of its business on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2014, the
related party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
either did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or only constituted
fully exempted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions by virtue of the de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has compiled with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 6.
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Report of the Directors

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the shareholders and
other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective
internal control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has also complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from paragraph A.5 of the
Code. Under paragraph A.5 of the Code, the Company should establish
a Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Currently, the Company had
not established a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
been delegated the functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is
of the view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess
the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions of
a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the composition and
operation of the Board Committees from time to time and shall consider
establishing a Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”). Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.



Exg
EFESRRRERERARENEHERE -
EEEHEAKENRBE SR EEEE
fF TEREUHKRA EEEGEEFER
BNBEANEEAEENERK BEEERE
ERRAARAMERLE -

NAINE

o

BRARIIAEHEZTGRENSE

o Bt

“ﬂ%iiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%%$A&%$*
EHNEELE SRTCHELFERBARR
ﬁﬂméﬁ%ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ %A&AX§$
ZEEeXEEH UHEAEHIRERR -
AL Bk M B EORZE %MFWE%%FA@%
BARXRERE  MERENEASEFER
HARWERENAARGACEMA - A
HEZEH -

‘I]]]

RZE-—MNF+_A=+—BERRARER
W B R2WTESF RRIFUTE
ENZRBUFNTEF -EFFBEANSE
275 ERNEEENGREEABREE]—
B R A RE A -

A A S
PEEIAME

Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group within the delegated
power and authority given by the Board. Management is accountable to
the Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committees
members for review and comment within a reasonable period of time.
Final version of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for
record within a reasonable period of time and the signed copies are kept
in the Company’s minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary
for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2014 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of one executive Director, five non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. A description of the
Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section from pages 27 to 32 and on the Company’s
website.
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As at 31 December 2014 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of the following members:

BRXEZEME RE-XEREMR
AREEERENAN AEEWAY
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
= Directors to the Board as Director
BTES: Executive Director:
RERGE(THAEAR) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) —ZE—=Z®FMNMANE Z—ZT—=FRAA+HH
9 April 2013 15 May 2013
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt%t & Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) —E-FEFNMANE ZE—=FFA+HH
(F/E) 9 April 2010 15 May 2013
TEBAEEERE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) —ZE-ZENAAE —ZE—=FAA+HH
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
HELE Mr. Tang Jun “E-ZTFENWAAR —E—=FRA+EHH
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
o5y &+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang —ET-EF-ANH ZE—-FHA+TEH
8 January 2010 14 May 2012
iRzt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca —EZAFNLA+HEH ZE—=-FHRA+TEH
10 September 2009 14 May 2012
BIYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
PR AL JE St A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —T-TFNAAHE —ZT—WFRA-TNH
9 April 2010 29 May 2014
BRE S SE A Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond —Z-TFNAAE —ZT—WUFRA-TNH
9 April 2010 29 May 2014
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher5E 2 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher “E2——%9%_A+H —ZE-NFREA-TIH
10 February 2011 29 May 2014
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time,
taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the size
of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, human resources and pharmaceutical
business fields. The Company has maintained on the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to
its best knowledge, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering the
Board to formulate overall strategies and business development plans,
ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable information by
each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues
raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the business of the Company and implementing
policies, business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and
is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The
senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive Director has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2013. Each
of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2013 except for Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher whose commencement date was 10 February 2014.
All Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the first general meeting after appointment.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 47




A fs S/
PEEIAME

Corporate Governance Report

REBEERRBEFAEL ER=0Z—NES
(RWMEEABUIF=a=NEH  AIKEL
BRAIR=0Z—WABBHARERE  IE
EEF(RRRZEEBIFHERTHIAR
LEB=FHERE R

R AN N R H) & 12 48 81 15 3 - Stephen Burnau
HuntE ~ B 2t REF F X T B HER
F UHEEAREBEEREERRABFAE
LEREME-

BHE_ZT-—NMF+_A=t—HIFE &R
AYEKTIREREZE S BRI RE

rzEe - FHMZEENETKYESHE
MEERATHEEZTEKE L ERE
KERAEFTLARREREBEAERNBIERR
EFEeFHEBEEZ REERANIES
AERREEER  FHEESHEEEEA
MWERE BN TIFRER - BETREREXR
SSAR (LB IFRTESMS) WULIERTE -
FMEESCRMATTESASREEED
REREF B OBREEAETES K
QFNEZEEHRERLNBREFEREA
EHEBER

48

Annual Report 2014 F %R

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Ms Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca and Ms.
Tao Fang Fang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination
of a new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an
interview will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable
recommendations to the Board.
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Changes of Senior Management
The Remuneration and Executive Committees have approved:

— the appointment of Mr. Liu Bang Min concurrently as general
manager of Ningbo Lansen, effective 30 March 2015;

—  the promotion of Mr. Li Wei Jun as director of business operations
of the Group, effective 29 January 2015;

— the appointment of Mr. Xu Guang as general manager of Ningbo
Liwah and the resignation as general manager of Ningbo Lansen,
effective 30 March 2015;

—  the resignation of a concurrent post of Mr. Zhou Rong as executive
deputy general manager of Ningbo Liwah, effective 29 January
2015; and

— the appointment of Mr. Cheng Hua Zhong as director of internal
control and compliance of the Group, effective 29 January 2015.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company from time to time updates and provides training
to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest development of the
Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’
duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has organised a
training session covering the topic of the impact of the new Companies
Ordinance to corporate governance. All Directors attended the training.
In addition, individual directors also participated in other courses relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by way of attending
training courses or via online aids or reading relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion of
the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference of
the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy
in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board'’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014
with the attendance of each Director as follows:

HEERRE

LITEBNRE
No. of meetings
attended/No. of

HE R

2= Directors meetings held  Attendance rate
HITESE: Executive Director:

[NERGCEGFTHAE) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:

Stephen Burnau Hunt#t & (£ /&) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 4/4 100%
FEBEEEFEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 4/4 100%
mEEAE Mr. Tang Jun 4/4 100%
bR o5 5 2+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 4/4 100%
=g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 4/4 100%
BYFHITES: Independent non-executive Directors:

PR 5048 7 A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 4/4 100%
BERR S A& Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 4/4 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3¢ 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 4/4 100%

REFENEHEEMS  EEHE LR
THAESETASRBAREGZNT IR
—RERSESFSRREMABEXF o EME
#ME EAERIENERT EXEFE8
BERTHENEM - BARRMERZAAM
BEFNZEBERIN  REFREH X5 - B
HMEETGRENHEBNEMN LA
ARREAEARGENES  BARBBRSE
EMERE BEBMEZTTEHIAAZEA
8RN -

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in their policies
relating to and affecting the Group; and

- to ensure accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive director and senior management was held to
discuss the performance of the executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board Committees
(see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee shall
provide their recommendations to the Board based on their respective
terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such recommendations
shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of reference of these
committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan
Kee Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the
following:

- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor and address any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting and internal
control systems of the Group.
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HE-_ZT—MF+_A=+T—BLFE " %T? The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
FEGRITTZRGH MEKENHEIL] December 2014 with the attendance of each member as follows:
U

HESBEXIH

HITEBAXRHY HE =R

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
EREEERERSR Name of Audit Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BRACIE L& (F ) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
FEBEEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
E TSR g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 3/3 100%
BORE e & Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 2/3 67%

HE-Z-—NF+-_AZ+—HIEFE &
éﬁ%ﬂ-

- REXEFSHAEMEEEERINERZ
BMBENTREERFEXEEARERM
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TEERAEEMRMBEN S BE:

- BREEEIRFZEAKESAMBERE
BB K HI B
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B
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MBEFAIELNEZZNERER R
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FHEES
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EMBENTESEN - BUIERPTESH
BMEEERATNZESER -FHEZESD
EHTEHen 85240 —Ko
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal control reports including
the status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once per
year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
placing such recommendations before the Board concerning the
total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors and
senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and

- to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.
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HE-Z-—MF+-_A=Z+—HIFE B The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
ZESRTTMASE  MEKENHFEBN 31 December 2014 with the attendance of each member as follows:
s
HEEIRE
BITERENREY =
No. of meetings
Name of Remuneration attended/No. of
FMEEamERR Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BRE T Se Ak (EE) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman) 2/2 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt 5t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 2/2 100%
FEBEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 22 100%
BRECIE S 4 Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 212 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 9t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 2/2 100%
HE-_Z—mWE+-_FB=+—8IF-FE ' #Ey During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
8 : Committee:
- HHITEENSLAEEENRBHETTE - assessed the performance of the executive Director and the senior
& s management;
- R EERSNEEEBNEIEE FE8 - reviewed the remuneration structure/ package of the Directors and
DR EFMNnEEoRHEERES the senior management, and made recommendation to the Board
on their remuneration;
- ETREZEENHE - determined policy for the nomination of Directors;
- SmEEeZT/bBENETER R — discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy; and
- TR TEREAERSEEZEREFE - made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election
EnmEEeELEERZS - of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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HE-Z-—NF+_A=1+—BLFEZEH The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration for
THMAWT the year ended 31 December 2014:

F&2EW BREF
ik ENEF g E @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans

Fees inkind contributions Total
S TER TER TER
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
HOEE: Executive Director:
AER Liu Bang Min - 365 18 383
FHBTEE: Non-executive Directors;
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
TEE Lee Jin Yi - - - -
BE Tang Jun - 10 - 10
bzt Tao Fang Fang - - - -
¥mx Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BRiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 - - 32
R F Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 - - 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
132 375 18 525

HE-Z—NFEF+-_A=1+—HIEFEZHE The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band

IBAERKEIRARE DS - for the year ended 31 December 2014:
—E—-NF
2014
A
No of individuals
= 2129,000% 7T Nil-US$129,000 2

129,001 JT £193,5003 JT US$129,001-US$193,500

193,501 JT £258,0003% 7T US$193,501-US$258,000 4
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
Director and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi, a non-
executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and financial-
related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to long-
term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep

REBSNMOEEBRAMELERE UK E  abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
RIBREBEETESTEAMFILAAME  monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
REG o strategies set by the Board.
HE-Z—WNF+-_A=Z+—HILFE  #$177 The Executive Committee held ten meetings during the year ended 31
CEBERITTIAEH  MBMEMNEFEIBFN  December 2014 with the attendance of each member as follows:
LU
HEEERE
BTEBRE i E =
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of
HITZEERERS Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
FEBEEFERE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 10/10 100%
BERLE Mr. Liu Bang Min 10/10 100%
bR o5 5 2+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 10/10 100%
= aegu Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 7/10 70%
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the Group
are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
65 to 66 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's auditor until
the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees paid/payable to BDO
Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

et ERE A

PR 7% 1% & Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FEn

Us$'000

% B R 5 Audit services 150
FZERD Non-audit services 27

HEBREIEEREHBEIINTHE
B e E At B X AR 75 -

REME
REAMEBEHEALEHETENE LS
BERER HREFTANENABIERB K
RREEFTTHRNIERF -

The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services in relation to the connected transactions.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Mui Chi Hung, plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group
and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, an internal
control department was established. Several department heads of the
Company met with the internal control department regularly to ensure
a sound internal control system is in place and maintained. To enhance
the knowledge of relevant staff of the Group, training will be provided
to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable laws as and when
appropriate.

During the year, the internal control department has performed internal
control reviews covering certain key control areas including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Company considered that the internal control department is
sufficient at this moment and will consider establishing an internal audit
function in the future if necessary.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussing with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system and evaluating findings on any deficiencies
in the design of the internal controls and developing recommendations
for improvement, where appropriate. On the other hand, the Board
continues to review, from time to time, the impact of development of
business and operations on the system of internal control to evaluate the
need for setting up an internal audit function for the Group.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting to the
Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management processes
are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review of
the systems and procedures is being carried out by management from
time to time to maintain a high standard of internal control and will make
appropriate changes to the internal control system, if necessary.

Inside information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that information which is expected to be
inside information should be announced once it is the subject of a
decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;

- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the year
2014/2015. The insurance covers them against costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board,;

- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company's website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the AGM
to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM, provided
that their shares have been recorded in the register of members of the
Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever is longer) before the
meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2014 annual
general meeting (2014 AGM"), held on 29 May 2014 at Room 1, United
Conference Centre, 10/F, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong. All Directors and the external auditor of the Company, BDO
Limited, attended the 2014 AGM.
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At the 2014 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2014 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast
at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li
Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company'’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of the
proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of
the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the Company in an
AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post . Suite 1203—4, 12/F,, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone . (86) 755 2532 3058

By post : Room 1804, Tower D, KK100, 139 Hongbao Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC (Post code 518001)

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 148, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

—E-—MmF =%
2014 2013
B 2 FEx FEx
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
KA Revenue 6 116,817 95,074
H & X AR Cost of sales (54,346) (42,836)
E F Gross profit 62,471 52,238
H Ath e A Other income 6 3,609 2,609
SHERDHEAZ Selling and distribution expenses (33,497) (27,733)
TR X Administrative expenses (13,661) (11,970)
mERF Profit from operations 8 18,922 15,144
B 765 B 2N Finance costs 9 (3,010) (1,653)
JEMREEE RRZ Share of post-tax profit of an associate
B Tt 12 )% A 2,156 1,590
R B 15 %4 Al & A Profit before income tax 18,068 15,081
e fAx Income tax expense 1 (4,088) (3,390)
FERH Profit for the year 13,980 11,691
Hitt 2w &= Other comprehensive income
HiZ AJgEE#T 7 25 E  Item that may be reclassified subsequently
Bz ZHE : to profit or loss:
MEGINETFEEZ  Exchange differences arising on translation
E 5 =58 of foreign operations (1,199) 3,479
FEAEMEERKE Other comprehensive income for the year,
(F B FEIE) net of tax (1,199) 3,479
FEZHWRAE Total comprehensive income for
the year 12,781 15,170
AT HEE AEIEER  Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 12 13,980 11,691
AATHEEAELEE Total comprehensive income
U 3% 48 &8 attributable to owners of
the Company 12,781 15,170
BRERN —EAXR#EE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 14 3.4% 1l cents 2.8% 1\l cents

BiEBREERERAR

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=F—M%F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2014

—E-NEF -
2014 2013
Bt 5 TEx FEx
Notes USs$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
ME - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 16 34,819 35,012
TE + Ho #E & FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 17 2,354 2,440
mEE Intangible assets 18 23,299 13,301
Gl Goodwill 19 6,824 6,824
REtERB) 2= Interest in an associate 20 35,113 34,109
102,409 91,686
REEE Current assets
e Inventories 21 16,880 17,185
B 5 K H b & W I8 Trade and other receivables 22 70,036 57,465
TEf + HoHE & SR IE Prepaid land lease payment 17 59 59
A 45 B 75 18 Tax recoverable — 500
EEMRITFE K Pledged bank deposits 23 27,072 14,458
RekReEFED Cash and cash equivalents 23 15,819 11,029
129,866 100,696
BWEE Total assets 232,275 192,382
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRf#E Capital and reserves
KABREBEAEMLESR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
P& AR Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
I A7 4 8 Share premium 25 30,819 39,645
SN E 5% 18 Foreign exchange reserve 25 12,261 13,460
=TT Statutory reserve 25 7.874 6,650
& B s A Retained profits 59,501 46,745
B Total equity 114,605 110,650
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=F—M%F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2014

—E-—0OF —E—=F
2014 2013
B 5% FEx FET
Notes US$'000 US$'000

ERBAE Non-current liabilities
RERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 993 378

REBAEE Current liabilities

EE Borrowings 26 84,811 59,152
mENTIBAE Current tax liabilities 1,776 1,566
B 5 K H th FE 7 ;I8 Trade and other payables 28 28,974 20,636
EtmemasE Other financial liabilities 29 1,116 —
116,677 81,354
wEeE Total liabilities 117,670 81,732
BEZREE Total equity and liabilities 232,275 192,382
RBEEFEE Net current assets 13,189 19,342
BEERARBAER Total assets less current liabilities 115,598 111,028

FOETEMBEMP B HRREON_F—HF=A
“HEREEESHERKETIE  XHIAT
ATREZRE:

EZ
Director

2ER
LIU Bang Min

The financial statements on pages 67 to 148 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015 and are
signed on its behalf by:

BEFE
Director
EmL
YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca
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Statement of Financial Position

BHE-_ZT W& +=A=+—HILFE Asat 31 December 2014

—F-NF —F=F
2014 2013
By 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
NN NG X Interest in a subsidiary 15 25,020 25,020
REBEE Current assets
NG E S Amount due from a subsidiary 15 7.828 16,998
TEF 3R IE Prepayments — 19
ReRBSFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 5,005 3
12,833 17,020
HWEE Total assets 37,853 42,040
EERkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXR#E Capital and reserves
ARAREBAELESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
[N Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
B% 15 % (B Share premium 25 30,819 39,645
25 E#E Accumulated losses 25 (2,322) (1,955)
R Total equity 32,647 41,840
REBEE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 26 5,000 —
FE 5T 38 Accruals 28 206 200
e E Total liabilities 5,206 200
BEZREE Total equity and liabilities 37,853 42,040
REBEEFE Net current assets 7,627 16,820
HWEERARBAS Total assets less current liabilities 32,647 41,840
EZE EF
Director Director
ZER =ML
LIU Bang Min YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014
B BRGEE HEFE EEREE RKRBEA R
Foreign
Share Share  exchange  Statutory  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
FET FET FET FET FET FEx
us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
HE-_ZT—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
TZA=t—HLEEE
RZZT—=F—H—HB2Z## Balance at 1 January 2013 4,150 49,568 9,981 5,347 36,357 105,403
RS (Fff 5313) Dividends (note 13) = (9,923) = = = (9,923)
HERANETRS Transactions with owners = (9,923) — — — (9,923)
FE Al Profit for the year — - - - 11,691 11,691
Hib2mE K s Other comprehensive income — — 3,479 — — 3,479
FEXEKEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = 3,479 = 11,691 15,170
EREEERHE Appropriations to statutory reserve = — — 1,303 (1,303) —
W-_T—=%F Balance at 31 December 2013
T-A=+—RHZz&#® 4,150 39,645 13,460 6,650 46,745 110,650
BE-E-—MNE Year ended 31 December 2014
+t=-A=+-HLFE
RZZE—WF—-H—HZ## Balance at 1 January 2014 4,150 39,645 13,460 6,650 46,745 110,650
B% 2 (Ft 3E13) Dividends (note 13) — (8,826) - - - (8,826)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners — (8,826) - - - (8,826)
FEm A Profit for the year — — - — 13,980 13,980
H fth 2 H I 2% Other comprehensive income — — (1,199) - — (1,199)
FEXHEK=EE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (1,199) - 13,980 12,781
BEREEATHE Appropriations to statutory reserve — — - 1,224 (1,224) -
RZZT M4 Balance at 31 December 2014
TZRA=t+—Bz&# 4,150 30,819 12,261 7,874 59,501 114,605
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

—E—mfF -
2014 2013
TEx FEx
USs$'000 Us$'000
REREEBZ2ERERE Cash flows from operating activities
b BT 15 %1 B i A1 Profit before income tax 18,068 15,081
T Adjustments for:
B 7R B 75 B AR Finance costs recognised 3,010 1,653
F B A Interest income (452) (417)
JE (R B & R R) 2 BR R 1% i A Share of post-tax profit of an associate (2,156) (1,590)
B 5 EWGRIERE (B E) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of
trade receivables 10 (568)
H th & g 2k I8 R (E (B ) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of
other receivables 15 )
M- BEREZETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,624 1,783
TR £ Hh A8 & R IE 55 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 64 64
HEME BERIEEIE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 7 137
TEREFEE 2 Gain on disposals of intangible assets (34) —
5 & = SE Write off of intangible assets 729 328
A = Amortisation of intangible assets 630 597
PRETF BB E & E Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 247 95
LIBE B EA 2K E E A Operating profit before working capital
changes 22,762 17,159
F & Increase in inventories (96) (5,060)
B 5 K H b & W GRIEE N Increase in trade and other receivables (13,757) (2,933)
B 5 N E fib & 5 IR L A0 Increase in trade and other payables 8,514 19
HEELZHE Cash generated from operations 17,423 9,185
BEfNHE Interest paid (2,972) (1,733)
BT fR Income tax paid (2,758) (3,126)

72 Annual Report 2014 4R



,\/\ Eﬁi/ﬂbii‘%
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—F —MF+=A=1+—HLFZ For the year ended 31 December 2014
—E-mF =%
2014 2013
TEx FEx
USs$'000 Us$'000
EETEEE T2 FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 11,693 4,326
REREETHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
B8R 1717 5138 0 Increase in pledged bank deposits (12,689) (5,822)
B4 th JE Ui R Decrease in pledged other receivables 659 2,670
BEWHE BEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,758) (6,355)
HEJEF & EMGERIE Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets 402 —
BEBWAE Purchase of intangible assets (10,762) (2,725)
HEWE  BENREFSHIE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 6 63
W B Bt 8 A B AR OB Dividend received from an associate 836 426
2 WA S Interest received 452 417
RETEFTHE 2 FEE Net cash used in investing activities (23,854) (11,326)
REMETHZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BEMBHRIE Proceeds from borrowings 87,829 64,986
BEEENE Repayment of borrowings (61,975) (48,675)
EfEE Dividends paid (8.826) (9,923)
FEFEELE T EFEE Net cash generated from financing activities 17,028 6,388

HERIREEEYW 2 FEM) ~ Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

R A equivalents 4,867 (612)
FONReMBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,029 11,381
EXEHZ 8 Effects of exchange rate changes (77) 260
FRESRESESEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15,819 11,029
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities of the
Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and are set out in note 33. There were no significant changes in the
Group'’s operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be CIH.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial liabilities that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.
The measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies set out below. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (“US$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. RMFITREEITRRIHBKHRSE 3. Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs

£
=
31 BRAFITRKEBITERMEREE 3.1 Adoption of new and revised IFRSs — effective 1

A—R-ZB-NF-A-HEX

BRI EHREER KEER
E105% - BB EF
TSR EXRIZE12
SRR BB e T
B ZE275R B E 5T

T ——F)
X B = 42 R SR EE
FI2H B ET reraE
B RERE B8
ZEe —R2EF
2158

BRI XSS - KA FETYH
AEBNPBERREBEATE

o

IR & a1 E R E 3295 A0 1E 5T - 3

THEERTHERE

tFE R RBH B RS ERI %32
SRR FE M te sl B B A MR 2
HIE - ZIESI B ER[BAERER
T o5 i A 1T M A DA K 8H | 2 B
AR ABREERFIEAREFRARN
HERA %ZHTF'EH’EHL%E% o IHIERT
AITEWEN - ARASE N &K
HBUREE - RAUERTHZFM
BHREWBEELETE -

January 2014

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
I[FRS 12 and IAS 27
(2011)

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

IFRIC — Interpretation 21 Levies

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding application guidance to IAS 32 which clarifies when
an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is considered
equivalent to net settlement. The amendments are applied
retrospectively. The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. RMFITIREEITRRIHBHRSE 3. Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

—/;t—/gsu (IIIE.)
3.2 EHEMEEREMNIHETREMEET 3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
BR B 7% 3 & 22 B not yet effective
REE W MmIBEF KA T 52 BMIE The following new and revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to
ﬁ*ﬁi?ﬁﬂ’]%ﬁﬂ&,@{“ﬂl B2 B 7% the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are
HEEA(BEAEENTBRKA not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
BEAEEE) Group.
BB SmE BB Eﬂ% ] IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements IFRSs
AR (B 3T) A2 —FF 2010-2012 Cycle 2
ET——F
BRI FE
W HE?
BEIE®RE BEBEBMEREE IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements IFRSs
AR (BET) Al —E——4F 2011-2013 Cycle !
E-T—=F
BAEMFE
W HE
BRE g mE B Hﬁfkiﬁ HAE IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements IFRSs
R (BET) RAl=ZF—=% 2012-2014 Cycle 3
E_T—NF
BAEMNEE
A 33
BRI EHRE SEMIAS IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments ®
AE A 95%
—ZT )
BRI BSE BHEPILD IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
@R'J 21555 A4 Customers *
SRl HEERES Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
%1 iAok & =]
B Et HAEZWITE Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
£ E'J Flegt k. REHEFIEMN and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
B B & 5+ 2 Al e f3 Amortisation 3
E38FREEFT
B e 2RlE BUYPBERED Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
2755 B E R 1 A3 Financial Statements 3
B EHmEE REEHEARE Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
Bl 55105% & RNAEHNE & and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
BResrEllE EHEHMNEE Associate or Joint Venture 3

285k M 1E R] HESTAE?

g RZZT—MFLtA—BKZERABH U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
F 2 HARE £

2 RZZE—ME+LRA—RAsiz&RRH 2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring,
FEHRRZBHAR ZBBEENR on or after 1 July 2014
2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. RMFITIREEITRRIHBHRSE 3. Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)
X8 (48)

= A

3.2 EEMEERERNIRT RSB

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

B R B A 3R 5 22 B (4R
P RSB AF-A-BRZEMKN
[ ARG A 3

‘ RIBE—tEF A BRZEREDN
FEHRER

s RZFB-NF—H—HHZRFAHED
FEHBER

BI R B 75 48 2 BRI F 95 (= F —

F) THTA

BIBR B 75 5 E R £ AR B
TREEDENMGENHBRE - R
BRARKAEENEDAHNEERE
MEBENA (FHEXAH)WER
FrAYAPTRI LA KRR EE R
EREBARREINHAREERS
BOASRHE(BNRERERH
A ESTE —RIZ#EIHKA
FTE - WMERNEKEARARSSA
REBaHBReREARHESR
BE  AINAANRESRERHA
AWES TERUAFEFAR
oz s (AR FEFAEME
] E - BRARMFER
B A A 4 R AR A R FEETA
Hip 2B At EY FFRHIEEE
MESTA - IAEEMESER
TEOUBERAFEZLEIIARE -

BRFR B 7% R 5 R E 95 (—F — 1Y
F)EERLIEARRATFEZ ST
ABESAENMAEMEERY
G R IR B R RERRN - IR
BIFR &R E39RME L B EER
A ARFIE—REPEFRE
NERERBRNMBRREAUREBR
HERERES -

not yet effective (Continued)

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

IFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 (2014) retains
the requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, |AS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition: 1) identify the contract(s) with a customer;
2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3)
determine the transaction price; 4) allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
5) recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new and revised IFRSs and the
directors are not yet in a position to quantity the effects on
the Group'’s financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses. The result
of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) (“CGU") that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

The Group'’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described in policy for associate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an interest in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group'’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the interest in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's interest in an associate. WWhen necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 /Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs include professional fees, direct costs of construction and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net sales proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment
Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. These payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the lease
terms between 48 to 50 years.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an
individual project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

J demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated:;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life
are amortised on straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, when the products are available for use. . The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and included
in administrative expenses. Capitalised development costs with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company/Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 87




38

S E R

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

FTEETHRRGE (R

£RIA(E)

SHEEE)

B R B E

B3R K FE W TE 1 AU BR T 5 I R (B
WERANEENRNIETESHEE -
ER & EWFIE (B 1E B 5 & H b UK
B DEBRTERIUARESERESS
EY) BRI EEREBHKARERNE
HRREEB(FEL2HETITXEREER
ENEEE)TIE -

BRI FX
ERNEXEARFESREERFEXNAR
RBEBMESEANERARTTE - BB
MR HG & B & B X B E TR & B sk (fi
i) BE B AR 5 5 OR 2R3R & OR
(BRERERERMNEAKRSEONAAEHN
HEWER  XHRA R E A B AT
R)EEFRENSEREREFED
=R -

CREERERSHRFILREFER
BR WRGFEFTBER BTLER
BENRBFAARKRSRESRNTER
ZEMBEEREEN —BXZESEMHM
X8 AZemMBEEHRRE -

X E
REMEEMS  RENTBEERATE
&

s BEOTAIRZYFHREARMBA
B

o EXNWIn RN HTEEER
BERARE) X

o [ERABGAEHEERRKERETHE
E R

. BEURERTEREBAEXEE
BB

e RERTARBMNATEANBXISE
TREERREKA -

Annual Report 2014 4R

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company/
Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities at
amortised cost” or “financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss”.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial
assets including borrowings, trade and other payables are
recognised when the Group becomes party to the contractual
obligations of the instrument and are initially recorded at fair value,
net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held for trading or
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii)
the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business and the use by others of the Group’s
assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised
as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the Company / group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. US$)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution benefit
plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities
as deferred government grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-
line method over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member to that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the Company’s parent;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

(iiiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associate accounted for using equity
method

. income tax
° finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/reversal
of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets

The management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry and technical know-how with perpetual
royalty-free license with no termination, have indefinite useful lives
as they believe that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of
time over which these intangibles are expected to provide cash
flows and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in
the market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will recognise
impairment loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible assets.

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, are determined with reference to
the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the operating
and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group's financial position and results
of operations. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of
intangible assets is US$23,299,000.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent consideration
of purchase of intangible assets as disclosed in note 29 based
on the forecast of future performance results of the related
pharmaceutical product and terms of acquisition agreement. The
fair value of contingent consideration will be revised upward or
downward where future performance results are different from
previous forecast and as a result, the change of fair value of
contingent consideration will affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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WA & H AW A Revenue and Other Income
REBRFANKA (BIREENEERE) An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which is also the Group’s
REMBABDITAT turnover, and other income for the years are as follows:
—F-DmF —F-=F
2014 2013
FEx FET
Us$'000 US$'000
HEEmHKA Revenue from sales of goods 116,817 95,074
Hfh it A Other income
IR1TF B U A Bank interest income 452 417
KT 7 B & Government grants 2,199 1,990
REWA Transition income 729 —
EAfh Others 229 202
3,609 2,609

AREBEEREM T RTREMHEIASE
AAKENRBARAESR X %M o W
B E) 78 B & 1 P 75 4 ] fR 4 o

NR-ZZE—ME=F=-+/\B A&E=HHE
Novartis AG & Novartis Pharma AG (%t 78
[FEZ ) ERk g - AIRIBE BE RE
FIEEXAZ - BREREHRA - A&
EEANSERREERENZEBEE
mATEREAE  B#mEERRASE
REIERY  BEETREMEEZE R
Em: WEBELETHE - KEWAL
HSHAEHERBEEEMTEAN &
Fle BHERBTEEE_ZT—AF=A
EEERIAEDR  c FEEBEAIEHEBEN
“E—RAFRNER -
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as
recognition of the Group’s performance and development of high-
technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received were not
subject to any conditions.

On 28 March 2014, the Group reached an agreement with
Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively “Novartis”)
to acquire the rights and know-how related to pharmaceutical
product. As the Group has not obtained the required licences
to manufacture or import the pharmaceutical product in the
PRC during the transition period, Novartis would supply the
transition services to the Group which include the supply of the
pharmaceutical product for sale carried out by Novartis in the PRC.
Transition income represented the transfer of profit generated from
the sales of pharmaceutical product by Novartis. The Certificate
of Pharmaceutical Product was transferred to the Group in March
2015. The management expects the transition period will be ended
by the end of 2015.
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7 B & ¥ 7. Segment Information

FERDE NI ED KRB MARTE Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
E-PEELEEREAZMOER TN operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
FIRNHEmER R ER - allocation and assessment of segment performance based on the

types of goods delivered.

7N £8 B AR 5 B B B 7 3R & 2R 52 85R AY The Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 are

BETERMREESBAOT : as follows:

— ER#EL:-HAE LERBEEEE —  Specialty pharmaceuticals: development, production and
FARA R K 7 8 B} 4B 15 /) S L EE sale of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the field of

rheumatology and dermatology

— EYRDBERREER: HE - £E — Plant extract and healthcare products: development,
K SH & PR KR EE m production and sale of Chinese medicine extracts and

healthcare products

+

et

— Hbh#m —  Other pharmaceuticals

LWTRAEERATEHRREE D EBE The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from

PHFELCEMEEANRAREE D continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.
AT o
BE-Z-NF+=-A=Z=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
HYRIRR
ERER REEM Hib %R £
Plant extract
Specialty and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products pharmaceuticals Total
FEn FEx FEn FEn
US$°000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
AT E23F®HELUWA Reportable segment revenue 70,730 35,854 10,233 116,817
AT 23D 2B T Reportable segment profit 21,891 6,475 608 28,974
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7. DEER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
 E_T—=F+"_HA=1t—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013
18 1) 12 B &%
ER S IR 62 ZE G E fth % @t
Plant extract
Specialty  and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products  pharmaceuticals Total
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BTE®mRDHBWA Reportable segment revenue 57,571 28,720 8,783 95,074
AT 2D 3 A Reportable segment profit 19,217 4,436 852 24,505
NES B A o B 55 AR ) 48 FE B BA S Sk The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
ERNAEEEZHHHBROERAOT : reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:
=F-mF B
2014 2013
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
= =R & B Profit or loss
AT 25 2% F Reportable segment profit 28,974 24,505
FEAG Bt & & &) B9 BR Bl 1% 3 F) Share of post-tax profit of an associate 2,156 1,590
H b R o KA Other income not allocated 3,609 2,609
RO Expenses not allocated (13,661) (11,970)
87 75 B AN Finance costs (3,010) (1,653)
B BT 13 %1 B i A1 Profit before income tax 18,068 15,081
Lxﬁﬁziﬁ’\ WA REINMER P AT Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
TN - RFEEWESHREEE (ZF from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the
—:¢ D) o current year (2013: nil).
KD EH g X ME@W?%W;ZKE The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
EH G HE B ETE®RD BEF same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4.
BN EHMEFREERDHEA - T7 Reportable segment profit represents the gross profit less selling
MATEZTEREERDERKRIRTH and distribution expenses by each segment. This is the measure
REmEER% - reported to the executive directors for the purpose of resources

allocation and performance assessment.
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Segment Information (Continued)

During the year, 11% (2013: 10%) of the Group’s revenue was
derived from a single customer in the “Plant extract and healthcare
products” segment. As at the reporting date, 21% (2013: 21%) of
the Group's trade receivables was due from this customer.

The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

—F-DmF —F-=F

2014 2013

FEx FET

Us$'000 US$'000

P (FEE) The PRC (domicile) 108,996 89,743
g b Overseas 7,821 5,331
116,817 95,074

EEmiRMEARE R XS EL M
MUBREE -ARAARRAESHET
MR EZERAR  MAEEEES
I BATAI R - RERBENEEZER
THEERMZRFE - Bt 55 EER
B R RS8R [ A& 7 BB | PTAR TE B9
BREMEREEASTENEHEAR -

REEEE AEENFREERDEE
5 45 7 B R o

MR EERARTERRESHE
ERHBAEER KL @25 EHE
# o

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands where the Group does not have any activities,
the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in the
PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in
the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the executive directors.
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geERA 8. Profit from Operations
REBMAKE BN LB GEA)T The Group's profit from operations has been arrived at after
5| R IFE W charging / (crediting):
—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
FER FEx
Us$000 Us$'000
1% SR B Auditor’s remuneration 206 183
ME- - BEREREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,624 1,783
REFERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 247 95
B 5 W R IE R E, (B E) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of
trade receivables 10 (568)
H it e U 2k 0B R E (B E) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of
other receivables 15 4)
PE 5 (W zs) B8 % 5 Net exchange (gain)/loss (16) 14
BRRBAXHNTFE KA Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses 52,944 41,789
THREFHLCEHERZ Operating lease charges in respective of
land and building 510 504
Tff 2% AR 2N Research and development costs 1,274 1,342
HEWE  HMEMNMRZEREIE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 7 137
HEREEERS Gain on disposals of intangible assets (34) —
B & B i Write off of intangible assets 729 328
T8 - b 78 & 5K IE # 8E Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 64 64
54 = Y Amortisation of intangible assets 630 597
BIRA(BEESHMW Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—TEEFH® — Wages and salaries 10,688 8,628
— TR REE — Defined contribution plan 2,100 1,716
12,788 10,344
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B % B A 9. Finance Costs
—E-—OF —E—=F
2014 2013
FTEx FE7
US$’000 Us$'000
BARAFRNBHERNRT Interest on bank borrowings wholly
BEE A S repayable within five years 2,972 1,733
1 35, 15 7 (Fft 5£29) Unwinding of discount on provision
(note 29) 38 =
W ETAEETRENER{F S Less: Interest capitalised included in
construction in progress — (80)
3,010 1,653

EENTERES A 85 M 10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals
= E N Directors’ remuneration
BN EMTARR G E SR H B AR5 0 The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to the
e directors of the Company are as follows:

Fc A= RIKEA
ik BUER & &I ‘et
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit plans

Fees in kind contributions Total
TEx TEx TEx TE=x
Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BE-Z-—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2014
HOES: Executive director:
AER Liu Bang Min — 365 18 383
FHMTES: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - — 39
ZEE Lee Jin Yi — - — —
BE Tang Jun - 10 - 10
i 5 Tao Fang Fang — - — —
2% Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —
BUEHITES: Independent non-executive directors:
R E Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 - — 32
58 Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 - — 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
132 375 18 525
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10. EENLBERS H A T B & N

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(#48) Individuals (Continued)
EEHM(E) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
e R RIKREF
we EWEH FHEIfR et
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees inkind  contributions Total
TEn FTxn TEx TE=n
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000
BE-T—=%+-FA=1T—HILEE Yearended 31 December 2013
HITEE: Executive directors:
ZER(MN=Z—=FMANBEZME) LiuBang Min (appointed on 9 April 2013) = 179 16 195
BRERZZ-—Z=FNANBEE) Xu Jun (resigned on 8 April 2013) — 40 3 43
FHMTESE: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — 39
ZEH Lee Jin Yi — — — —
BE Tang Jun = 8 — 8
x5 Tao Fang Fang — — — —
Emr Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
SR CH Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 — — 32
B A3 Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 = = 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 — — 29
132 227 19 378
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Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of one (2013: one)
director of the Company, details of whose remuneration are
reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration
of the remaining four (2013: four) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

—F-MIF —T=F

2014 2013

FEx F=7

Us$'000 Us$'000

e EMAMEYRET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 818 484
B RAE T 5T &I 5K Retirement benefit plans contributions 48 4
a5 Total 866 525

XHTLEAEFESALOFMHN TR
TEE:

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals were within the following bands:

—E-—mEF —E—=F

2014 2013

A AN

No of No of

individuals individuals

Z %129,0003 T Nil-US$129,000 — 3
129,0012 JT £193,5003E JT US$129,001-US$193,500 — 1
193,5013% 7T & 258,000 7T US$193,501-US$258,000 4 —

2T NFE+_A=+—"Hh _ZT—
=+ _A=+—HILFE @HEEEH
% 5K [F) 2 B 1 {n] 3 B A9 &2 5 -

HE-Z—WF+-_A=+—HEZ=Z—
=F+_A=+—HLFE AEERF
AERNEEREMNAZEsFALTX
NEE  EBIMAREBRSINAKRNEE
RSB Sk BE B B (8 -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or compensation for loss of office during
the year.
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. FTEHEAX 11. Income Tax Expense
—E2-mF —T—=fF
2014 2013
FEx FE7
US$’000 Us$'000

EHTIE —FEEEMEN Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(TEZEmEHRD ("EIT")
— FE IR — tax for the year 3,596 3,142
— BAFE (BEEE) BETR — (over)/ under provision in respect of

prior years (122) 54
3,474 3,196
i FE 18 (M 3527) Deferred tax (note 27) 614 194
FriS %t Income tax expense 4,088 3,390

EPBELANERTENHBDRAS
B EPEN S RDARE R A E B R A

sty
B o
ZFr

REBEFBEGEAETE(RERMABHIED

&Eﬁw%w FE B AR EA
25% (ZZ — =4 : 25%) °

fﬁéﬁﬁﬁ$lﬁ%ﬂ&¢¥mW%
Nl E—ZF—A—HEZH15%H
BENL %% i -

AEBE—HNBARAIINEBEE X
1R 15 R B AN 4% & 1 FE TN SN 1b 3 TS
Fx BEEKEHEBAEFERBEERD
ERENEERL BEMEEHRHLHE
FR1SHL « BE1E =F R+ B EFEH -
ERERER T —=ZFEF25% K IZ%E
TR o

REBEEXMETE - BRI FOER - #
FETRERERREBMNERARET
MEEE  BEANEEEBERNG
MEBRBEERER AKE—RAK
EREREEEBNTENBARAR
BRBERMEM -
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Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2013: 25%).

A subsidiary has been certified as a new high technology enterprise
in the PRC and enjoyed a preferential EIT rate of 15% starting from
1 January 2010.

A subsidiary of the Group is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprise
with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises and is entitled
to full exemption from EIT for two years and a 50% reduction in
the following three years thereafter starting from the first profit
making year after offsetting prior years’ tax losses, its tax rate
reached the standard rate at 25% in 2013.

According to the EIT law, its rules and regulations, enterprises that
engage in certain qualifying agricultural business are eligible for
certain tax benefits, including full EIT exemption on profits derived
from such business. A subsidiary of the Group in the PRC engaged
in qualifying agricultural business is entitled to full exemption of
EIT.
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11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

FAMGHAXEGEER R EMEE The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
W 25 7% BT 7S BR PS50 Al A A B9 5 AR A0 TS - before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
Fxx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
& BT 15 7% Bl i A Profit before income tax 18,068 15,081
LEBARABEEEREREMEFFZE Tax on profit at the rates applicable to
FTE R IR the jurisdictions concerned 3,554 3,173
TAHBAZIOREZE Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 1,256 526
o N R b Tax effect of non-taxable income (52) (35)
FE(RH & R R R B 12 7 A1 A Tax effect of share of post-tax profits of
& an associate (356) (262)
BEFE(BEBEE) BETR  (Over/Under-provision in respect of prior
years (122) 54
RTHEMBEAGMNEEE R Tax exemption granted to PRC
subsidiaries (83) (111)
Hity Others (109) 45
g #Hi X Income tax expense 4,088 3,390

RARERAEL R

12. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

NAEIHEA A KL 4R S & 513,980,000 Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
Ex(ZZF—=%:11,691,000% 7x) ¥ - of US$13,980,000 (2013: US$11,691,000), a loss of US$367,000
B B367000k T(ZE - =% B & (2013: a loss of US$359,000) has been dealt with in the financial
359,000 7T) B A2 7 B 7% 3 & A & statements of the Company.

o

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 09
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

=t 13. Dividends
—E-—OF —E—=F
2014 2013
FEx FE7
US$’000 Us$'000
FARZRD KR E : Dividend recognised as
distribution during the year:
B %9547 ML (£91.23% 1) & 2014 interim dividend — HK9.54 cents
—E-MEFREHRE (approximately US1.23 cents) per share 5,107 —
5 1%6.957 1l (£70.93E 1) &Y 2013 final dividend — HK6.95 cents
—E——FREKRE (approximately US0.9 cents) per share 3,719 —
F %8347 Il (£91.082&1lll) & 2013 interim dividend — HK8.34 cents
ZE—-—FHRBERE (approximately US1.08 cents) per share — 4,462
1 10.2078 1L (891323 1L) &9 2012 final dividend — HK10.20 cents
—E—FRERE (approximately US1.32 cents) per share — 5,461
8,826 9,923

RBEHRE  EBEZENEE=
T—NMFE+ A=+ —HILFEHKLH
B% B 3 BR8.7478 U (#9113 L) - 48 &5t
36,271,0003% 7T (494,676,0003 T)( = Z
—=F :fgE_E—=F+-H=+—H
IFFER RIS A E%6.9551l1 (40.9
F) HEASEBRRAERREASH
R HAMEE - B AHRERRS
HE M AERRBEE -

BRER
BREABIIZFRAQREEAEMN
4R A% H K2 415,000,0008% 2 3 1TRD (=
T — =4 : 415,000,0000% f& 19) 5T & -

AEERFRAR E—FUBEBEH R

T/'\ ®

1 1 O Annual Report 2014 4R

14.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK8.74 cents (approximately US1.13 cents), totally amounting to
HK$36,271,000 (approximately US$4,676,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: final dividend of HK6.95
cents (approximately US0.9 cents) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting. The proposed final dividends have not been
recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2013: 415,000,000
shares).

The Group had no potential dilutive shares during the year and
prior year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-T—WF+= A =+—H L& JE For the year ended 31 December 2014
15. RIEB AR ER 15. Interest in a Subsidiary
—EF-@DF ==

2014 2013

FEx FE7

US$’000 Us$'000

JEEMIZE - KA Unlisted investment, at cost 25,020 25,020
ERHEARIZRIBAEER £EKE The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
EERKEE - i%:w A R EREE repayable on demand. The directors consider that the carrying

HEAFERS amount of the balance approximates to its fair value.

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 1
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HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

16. ¥ BERRE 16. Property, Plant and Equipment
RE Group
BFREBE 3R AE RARRE EERIR st
Furniture
Building Motor and Construction
and plant Machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
FTER T TFTE=x T=x FET FET
US$'000 US$'000  US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
R-Z—=#—-A—8 At 1 January 2013
X AR Cost 18,476 7,798 1,198 2,081 5,953 35,506
REE Accumulated depreciation (2,355) (2,203) (470) (811) — (5,839)
BREHE Net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667

HEZZT—=F+=-FB=1—HIFE Yearended31 December 2013

FHREFE Opening net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667
ERECE: S Exchange adjustment 554 192 20 39 88 893
NE Additions 56 1,167 37 374 4,801 6,435
e Depreciation (603) (721) (129) (330) — (1,783)
BE Disposals = (136) (15) (49) — (200)
RERIRER Transfer from construction in

progress 8,211 2,418 = 177 (10,806) =
FREEEE Closing net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
R=ZE—=%+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013
A Cost 27,371 11,314 1,078 2,408 36 42,207
2 E Accumulated depreciation (3,032) (2,799) (437) (927) — (7,195)
BRI (E Net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012

HE-Z-—NF+=-A=1+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2014

FNREFEE Opening net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
[& 5 3% Exchange adjustment (220) (77) (6) (12) 1 (314)
RE Additions 447 1,293 53 391 574 2,758
e Depreciation (1,015) (1,083) (131) (395) — (2,624)
BRE Disposals = (1) — (12) — (13)
REBRTIREE Transfer from construction in

progress 420 = = — (420) -
FEREEFE Closing net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
RZZ—NE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
B A Cost 27,996 12,509 1,121 2,739 191 44,55
2T E Accumulated depreciation (4,025) (3,862) (564) (1,286) — (9,737)
BREHE Net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
R-Z—NF+—_A=1+—8 EAES As at 31 December 2014, certain properties with a carrying
7,400,000 jT (== — =4 : 10,034,000 amount of US$7,400,000 (2013: US$10,034,000) were pledged to
EL)ME TYWEEBEBURSGETRE secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note 26).

K IRITHEE (B &E26) °

1 1 Z Annual Report 2014 %R
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HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

FENLTHBHERE 17. Prepaid Land Lease Payment
RE Group
—E-nmF —T-=F
2014 2013
FTEx FE
US$’000 Us$'000
BERIN BUTHRAEE: Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— R EFFR 4T — medium term lease 2,413 2,499
B EE AR B & E 8 B B S Less: Current portion included in
current assets (59) (59)
FTAERBEEMNIERB D Non-current portion included in
non-current assets 2,354 2,440
FHREFE Opening net carrying amount 2,499 2,495
FEEE Amortisation for the year (64) (64)
B 5, 58 & Exchange adjustment (22) 68
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,413 2,499
BRI AR Gross carrying amount 2,890 2,916
25T 5 Accumulated amortisation 4a77) (417)
AREFE Net carrying amount 2,413 2,499

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H" E@EE
#951,000% T (ZZF—=4F : 1,222,000
JT) M F5 T FE T £+ i & FRIE B R A ER
BRTHMERRITEE (M FE26) -

26).

As at 31 December 2014, certain prepaid land lease payment
with carrying amounts of US$951,000 (2013: US$1,222,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 3
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HE_T—WF+_ A=+ —HILFZ For the year ended 31 December 2014

18. BEFEE 18. Intangible Assets
KE Group
AERERF
A B B 1
BROHE BWEELR BA % Bk & HEAR st
Exclusive Indefinite-
distribution Technical Development lived technical
rights  know-how costs know-how Total
TEx FET T=n FET FET
us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(GEL) (Hf=Eb) (Ff e (g ))
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d)
R=-ZE—=%—HA—H At 1 January 2013
B Cost 160 6,576 5,441 = 12,177
2T E Accumulated amortisation — (884) (129) — (1,013)
BRI (E Net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 — 11,164
HE-T—=F+-RA=+—H Year ended 31 December 2013
LEE
FNEREFEE Opening net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 — 11,164
ERECE:S Exchange adjustment 10 162 165 — 337
NE Additions 325 766 1,634 — 2,725
B Amortisation — (597) — — (597)
ik Write off = = (328) = (328)
FREEEE Closing net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 = 13,301
R-ZT—=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013
XA Cost 495 7,536 6,916 = 14,947
REITE Accumulated amortisation — (1,513) (133) — (1,646)
BREF(E Net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 = 13,301
HE-T—NF+=-A=+—H Year ended 31 December 2014
TEE
FNREFEE Opening net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 = 13,301
EHAR Exchange adjustment (5) (57) (53) — (115)
nNE Additions — 52 2,710 9,078 11,840
B s Amortisation 33) (597) = = (630)
i35 Write off = = (729) = (729)
BE Disposals — — (368) = (368)
FREEEE Closing net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
RZF—NF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
AR Cost 490 7,520 8,474 9,078 25,562
ES Accumulated amortisation (33) (2,099) (131) — (2,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299

1 14 Annual Report 2014 %R
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2T —NE+_HA=+—HItFE
ANEBRE RIS T IEEEITH 3
B xEZR2ARERBEKARTEZFA AT
B - SR{EET1E729,0003 ST E R T X

NEER

VA 48 T2 & B #Y AR T (B OB =

AREERE -

Bt =
(@)

BRDHE

(i)

(ii)

RZT——F  ANEBEHREFFENE
U %2 5 R /A &) & Ethypharm SA (%578
[BEWMEDITLBRBZ -

BEHZ  AEEERRES BE
W EEBEREY ((2a]) /T EE
RMIBKHEE  BERBELBSHER
H104F -

BEABRDHEHZ ASEEA
REREGEREEEER(EXRR
REREBEER)BRLENERF
MECEOEZSZEMENDEBMER
2 H14245,000% T (FHERLH AR
1,500,0007T) ¢ K& 78 5t (A B X B & 2%
MEEETERAEEQSEDEMEN
B B IR 1 98 141,062,000 T (49 A
R #6,500,0007T) ° 5 i #E KB R &
ZHRE B IR B A AE (FTEE30) ©
HEMEZSRAMBHREAY - &
B2 Fp M fE AT R -

R-E—=F+-F A£EHEE—%
HEFIIBRIBZE - UEE B
MIEREAHI0FR S SHAE o b5 8
ERREREERIOFEFH(AIEZ
T—ME—A—BHRND HELR)
B -

BMBEXABETRERABREES TH
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E-T——FtA—HE FHARERR
MRMEENMBZEREER T —FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Group (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group decided to
terminate several research and development projects which were
under development, mainly due to the surging bulk pharmaceutical
cost. An impairment loss of US$729,000 was recognised in
administrative expenses to write the carrying amount of the
intangible assets down to its recoverable amount of zero.

Notes:
(a) Exclusive distribution rights
(i) In 2011, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement with
Shanghai Ethypharm Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd and Ethypharm SA
(collectively referred to as “Ethypharm”).

Under the agreement, the Group has been granted the exclusive
rights for the marketing and distribution of ketoprofen/omeprazole
slow-release capsules (the “Drug”) in the PRC for a period of 10
years from the launch date of the Drug.

Pursuant to the agreement of this exclusive distribution rights,
the Group is committed to pay US$245,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,500,000) to Ethypharm on the date of
the grant of the Import Drug License (“IDL”) from the State
Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA"); and committed to pay
US$1,062,000 (approximately RMB6,500,000) for the clinical
studies that required from SFDA to apply the IDL application.
The consideration of the distribution rights had been disclosed as
commitment at the end of the reporting date (note 30). Up to
the date of approval for these consolidated financial statements,
the registration process is still in progress.

(i) In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for
one pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right will
amortise on a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period
of the distribution right, starting from 1 January 2014.

(b) Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired
for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical products.
With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral

disintegrating tablets had been amortised on a straight-line basis over 11
years.

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 5
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HEZ

—P & += A=+ —H L& For the year ended 31 December 2014

8. EFEE(HA)

ARE(H)
b )
R-F—=F SRUELEFRAF(E

R E)ECHA BRI B AR R ETEME
EMTRMRARRR ([BAEDFTZERR
MR % - RIBEHZE - ERLERBIAR
% X 82,419,000 7T (4) A K #14,800,000
T REBEKREBARARZIEMERE - KR
RSB R IR A R E B A KE - HEMER
AT - ABERE - EF - FFUENRRRE
TERERFB(CRRAMFIERERE]D - KE

BEZEEEBRNAEEERLENR
XHFEME - BEZT—WNFE+=_A=1+—

BIEFE @ BV EE X14763,000% 7T (4
AR #4,670,0007T) - B TREERKESAH
HA 4 RO B BE B AR (M RE30) ©

ABERATREHNERMETRADELD
A ER(TMBERE]D -

EERRASANAERLERERFY R
HERBEENARERFRTRHRS
MEMBELETRRE o L FANHERE

—BREEAREKRAES - MERTA
ERET

HMABERLRAE BEEREEEILZ
WO MEERS - AEREBFHOA
BERIBETHE YRESEMERFEE
FRETFEREAN  MEETFRBETE
R {50 P4 B AR EE R FTRERLE - I A
B ETTORE R A o

EERERAFHORMEXMAE TR
LEHI KA R EFBFFA] o

T-—NF=A=F+NH KRR EE
BB ARIBAELRE(FB)BRAR (B
BmE|)(VRFEFEIVEERERZ Bt
AERBRAPAEEERIEEE(RFR
B Euﬁﬁiﬁa’ﬁim CERERTE  BTEE
2 mER &8 + R (i)&] 32 5F 7]
k- LMEE%%&?%F\E&%E‘%EDEW(EDEP
B (TRESS  RPIRAE)) KT - 235
% X (& £8,000, oooinéﬁﬂﬁm N4 EE
& = 431,500,000 7T &) 58 H) B 72 88 15 3R (£
A EEE _—_T—NFE=A -+ \BEEE
K §H & RE B 8) ©

kB RSB
|

ZEEEQEERENEREEDKS =
NEFEREEEEEARERBEN —K
B FEARNAEXLBERERERRE
1 Y A M B Y AR R R o
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18.

Intangible Assets (Continued)
Group (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo
Liwah") entered into a pharmaceutical technology transfer agreement
with Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and Technology Company
Limited (“Longbai”), an indirect subsidiary of CIH. Pursuant to the
agreement, Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from Longbai the misoprostol
development project for a cash consideration of US$2,419,000
(approximately RMB14,800,000). The misoprostol development project
comprised the know-how and related materials and technology,
intellectual properties, permit(s) and license(s), and certain
supporting equipment (“Misoprostol Development project”). The
consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah to Longbai in cash in
several milestone payments. Up to the year ended 31 December 2014,
Ningbo Liwah had paid US$763,000 (approximately RMB4,670,000). The
remaining consideration had been disclosed as commitment at the end

patent,

of the reporting date (note 30).

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there
is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in
pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPR can
be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products are
continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to expense. IPR with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at
each financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that
IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.

Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence with no termination.

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited (“LMHK"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i)
the asset purchase agreement with Novartis pursuant to which Novartis
agrees to transfer to LMHK the transferred assets (Including know-how,
books and records, specified trademarks, commercial information and
medical information relating to the pharmaceutical product), and (ii) the
licence agreement to grant the Licences, relating to the pharmaceutical
product in the territory (i.e. the PRC, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan) for a total cash consideration comprising an upfront payment of
US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone payments of a total maximum
US$1,500,000, linked to sales achieved by LMHK.

The pharmaceutical product contains specific active pharmaceutical
ingredients and it is marketed and sold as a cream under trademark
Sicorten Plus in the territory. It will primarily be used to treat certain
corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary infection.
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HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE 19. Goodwill
KEE Group
—F-HmF —F=F
2014 2013
T FET
US$'000 Us$'000
AR TE B Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEBR _ZTRFWBERIENRN
EEE (R ﬂll)ﬁﬂﬁ A (DRYIBAE D) » &%
FERXHNRBEEHEAR °

AEERBEAMRFEFRABELT
FREBERR - BT REREEA
BE - BEATETRERM -

REANATNS  mERIERFHE
BHETVEES I EE—BARSELE
- BRIEXEGAREREEENE
MIB AR  HESBERLLEDHNIE
RE] -

PRREELBEUAIKROSENEER
HIXrEZMBA/RKBALIT

ZREEEBMAAIWE S FEAERE
BAEEET A BEAERERES
BEMERRAFHNUBREENER 2
METERARI0%WITIRE (ZT—=45F:
M%) - BEEFHNRSRERAER
KO%TER - IR ETHIR R B BT 218
RIEAIME - FE AEEGTE AN HAM =
BEREDERBESAEAREA-ET -
ERREEEHERENE - BRAME
DERZEUBERBUREEREST
HERMNER - EBEEMRE  EAHE
BRTEHRNA B DT E SN
AR E B B H Al W Bl A 58 -

HE-T-—NF+-A=+—HBILFE -
AEBEEERE ERAESHERA
ERFHERNEBELEENRSELE
{37 I R (E o

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in 2005. These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method of
accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each financial
year end, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives have been allocated to one CGU,
including subsidiaries with principal activities of manufacturing
and trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which is identical to the
“Specialty pharmaceuticals” under operating segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 10% (2013: 11%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 0% which is based on pharmaceutical industry
growth forecast. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGU
containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives.

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 7
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20. REtE QRN ER 20. Interest in an Associate
KEE Group
—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
FErx FE
US$°000 UsS$'000
BLEEFE Share of net assets 16,078 14,902
o Goodwill 19,035 19,207
35,113 34,109
BAAEENHRE AR S AR B Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period
mT is as follows:
SMEZBER SEEREEEEEER
AR HRB 2 B RERNLH TEXEWK
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interest and voting power
Name of entity and operation held by the Group Principal activity
—E2-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
HMIRALHERNERRRE FE 21.5% 21.5% EERFEMDREE
([RIAR3Z)
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical The PRC Production of bulk
Company Limited (“Starry”) pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
LB RR NIRAERERGE B The above associate was accounted for using the equity method in
MRARR © the consolidated financial statements.

1 1 8 Annual Report 2014 4R
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HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

20. Interest in an Associate (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below:

—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
Fxx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
WR+=B=+—8 As at 31 December
mENE E Current assets 65,832 61,488
EREEE Non-current assets 127,708 104,885
mEBE Current liabilities (81,937) (80,088)
EmBEaE Non-current liabilities (40,981) (22,613)
BE+-H=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 107,152 111,627
FE % F Profit for the year 11,017 8,126
FEHAM 2 W = Other comprehensive income for the year — —
FE2EKRERE Total comprehensive income for the year 11,017 8,126
FEEBE RAA WA R S Dividends received from the associate
during the year 836 426

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 9
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HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

20. REEZE DA R (]) 20. Interest in an Associate (Continued)
AREE(E) Group (Continued)
LA £t 2t 9 B 75 B B B 4R S B A Rk BT Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
T SRR B i A R Y A % BR T (B A 349 B the carrying amount of the interest in an associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

— ks —F-=F
2014 2013
FERn F=ET
US$'000 Us$'000
AIAVHEEAEBEER Equity attributable to owners of Starry 68,817 62,728
NEERR A KA EREZS LB Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Starry 21.5% 21.5%
14,796 13,487
EES Goodwill 19,035 19,207
R A EFEN T2 Effect of fair value adjustments at
acquisition 1,427 1,441
B 3 = Other adjustments (145) (26)
AREBRA AR RAE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Starry 35,113 34,109
21. & 21. Inventories
KEE Group
—E-—0OF —E—=F
2014 2013
FTEx FEx
US$’000 Us$'000
R M Raw materials 2,010 4,510
£ B i Work-in-progress 8,370 6,474
21 B mn Finished goods 6,500 6,201
16,880 17,185
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HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

21. Inventories (Continued)
Group (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, provisions of
US$247,000 (2013: US$95,000) against the carrying value of raw

materials and finished goods have been made.

EZRHMERFIE 22. Trade and Other Receivables
KE Group
=F-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
=0 1 & Q] Trade receivables 38,716 33,367
BB 5 IR R E Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (233) (918)
38,483 32,449
e Bills receivables 19,540 15,282
=Y %KIE&FEJ%Z%‘—?TF Trade and bills receivables 58,023 47,731
T8 1 FRIE F B FE Wk Prepayments and other receivables 12,013 9,734
70,036 57,465

B fé’% H b f& YK IR B BR T

AEBNBRERNERFREFH0E
120B(ZFE—=F:90HZ120B) Nz E

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate their fair values.

The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 90

to 120 days to its customers (2013: 90 to 120 days).
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22. ESRHEHMEWRFIEE)

AEM(E)

REBEZZAH HEREFAHL A&
B 1 B 5 e WCROR N R KR i (FORR R
BEER)KREITMOT

22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the end of
the reporting date is as follows:

—ZE—-MmF —E—=F

2014 2013

FEx TEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

90HZ AT 90 days or below 41,012 42,670
91£180H 91-180 days 9,610 3,965
1812 365H 181-365 days 7,401 1,096
58,023 47,731

NEBE R E S e RIE & R E IR 4 6
B 15 4 BR M (85,936,000 T (— T — =
F : 4,455,000 70) MBI FRIE - Z5E
WHRERREAHEBHREAEE R
WERBEIREE ZEREEZRA
W ERACHENBIREEARE - B
BAELR ARAEERAE AREH
HEWESKEE  BEBKRATER
2HUE - BB AR %S &S SIELR
BEE AEETERZSEHRFTEE
A m o

A 4 B 23 9 30 SRR ME B0 R 5 R K
ERE ST

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$5,936,000 (2013:
US$4,455,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. These
relate to a number of independent customers of whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade
receivables is as follows:

—E-NF —T—=F

2014 2013

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

B HINZE90H Past due over 1-90 days 5,481 3,359
#1 #1915 2758 Past due over 91-275 days 455 1,096
5,936 4,455
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Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

S ¢ receivables is as follows:

—F-—DmF —F=F
2014 2013
TXx TFET
Us$'000 Us$'000
®—A—H At 1 January 918 1,903
ME 5, o & Exchange adjustment (12) 38

B REWRIERRHE,(BE) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of
trade receivables 10 (568)
5 7E A 2] Uk (=] i i g A & B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible (683) (455)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 233 918

bt B 5 R WK TR R R (B 1 s T A 1B
R H) B B UK IR R o (BRI E R
EURHRBAETZEBMBRRENTFAR -
BHEARD BURARBAIKE - K
SETELZSERFTHEMNERR -

R-ZE—ME+=—A=+—8 ' KA
RIBERE 5 FE WK IE 532,547,000 7T
—E =4 :27994,000E ) 8

2 & WK IR B R 25 B0 4 R SR RC R /Y
EEB# -

RBEE_FT—=Ft+_A=1t—HLHF
ER AEERSREBURRAATE
EBRENBOBKRERE - WERRER
FAEBREEHRRNEMBBEIMNER
B - MEREFHSBEE WA
BHIA56%:TE EERERENA
Bk Bl AEBEBUREREER
B8 K R N R L B e

RZZE-—WHF+_A=+—BHESR
BERE -

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made for
individually impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$32,547,000
(2013: US$27,994,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group discounted
part of its bills receivables with full recourse to financial institutions.
In the event of default by the bills receivables, the Group was
obliged to pay the financial institutions the amount in default.
Interest was charged at 5.6% per annum on the proceeds received
from the financial instructions until the date the bills receivables
pay. The Group was therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses
and late payment in respect of the discounted bills.

There were no discounted bills as at 31 December 2014.
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22. ESRHEHMEWRFIEE)

REE(E)

NS ERERIEERE RSB KD
R &ER - AR R SIS E
Re R FRKRIEEREMEERN
BHE RZE—=F+-A=+—H0 &
I 22 $5:130,000 3% Tt 4 48 707 & B B 75 1)
RERR BEHEEAIEETSRE
BB RINMERECIEREEE
REE (HE2) st ABER  EEERK
BEKEEX A EBEN RGBT
EEB R —=F+=-A=1+—81"
HE B EREENEEERBMEAER
130,0003€ JT °

HRERRBEERZEZTSRBEE -
BASEERETRUEENEE °

RZZE—NWNF+_A=+—8  EREEA
14,668,000 T (—Z = — =4F : 4,642,000
EL)ME TRKEZEERE KRS R
TEE(ME26) - HEAENEEER
13,500,0003 jT (= Z — = 4 : 7,100,000
E)°

N-ZE—=F+—"A=+—H KEEAS
659,0003 7T Ky & T E fib & YL FR B B K 3
LAERB R 77 2 & (Fit 7£26) - FE WK IEE,
R-TE—EXA-+MBEE - iR
2%MFEF RS - HEEENEREEES
1,289,000t e R-_ZE—MWMFE+_-A=
+—H SERAEMERZKBULES
IRITIEX °

MN-ZE—HNE+-A=+—H BNE
HE MR HIErIE 28 E - HE 5t
ATREARBEBUGERERZSER
RIE R E B 1,000 (2 — =4
649,000 JT) ° AN £ B I & 5t 5% 5 45 o4
BFAETEMEAER -
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

The discounting transactions did not meet the requirements in
IAS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
discounted bills receivables. At 31 December 2013, bills receivables
of US$130,000 continued to be recognised in the Group's financial
statements even though they have been legally transferred to the
financial institutions. The proceeds of the discounting transactions
were included in borrowings as asset-backed financing (note 26)
until the bills receivables were collected or the Group settles any
losses suffered by the financial institutions. At 31 December 2013,
the asset-backed financing liability related to discounted bills
amounted to US$130,000.

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2014, certain bills receivables with carrying
amounts of US$14,668,000 (2013: US$4,642,000) were pledged
to secure bank borrowings (note 26). The carrying amount of the
associated liability was US$13,500,000 (2013: US$7,100,000).

As at 31 December 2013, certain other receivables with carrying
amounts of US$659,000 were pledged to secure bank borrowings
(note 26). The receivables matured on 24 June 2014 and carried
interest at 2% per annum. The carrying amount of the associated
liability was US$1,289,000. There were no other receivables
pledged to secure bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$1,000 (2013: US$649,000) was recognised for
certain long outstanding receivables as these receivables are not
expected to be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other
receivables is as follows:

—E-NF —T—=F

2014 2013

FErx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

®—A—H At 1 January 649 635

PE o 3 B Exchange adjustment (5) 18
H b fE U SR B R E (B E]) Provision for/ (Reversal of) impairment of

other receivables 15 (4)

5 7E A 2] Uk (=] i i g A & B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible (658) —

R+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 1 649

BROBE SRS - bt & B I R A s
B Ll#EHRABRENESEE E &I H
I 8 R R AR B UGN IR A R

BEEARTER HEREEE
B

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents
rEE PN
Group Company
—F-mF ZT-=F —F-0F —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

FEx TET FERx TET
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000

H & MIRT1T 4 64 Cash and bank balances 42,891 25,487 5,005 3
B B RITER Less: pledged bank deposits (27,072) (14,458) — —
RekBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,819 11,029 5,005 3

RBehBRTERERRITETFRESNU
RIRBIEAEE =@ A A TR BIER 1T
TR e RITRERBEERRITHERA X
BFHNEAE - EHEHFEREFAR
1T 12 35 M R BREA 8 -

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand, and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed with
banks and earn interest at market interest rates.
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23. EERBTER RERALE
& (8)
R-F-—QNFE+_A=+—BR-_F—=
F+_A=1+-HNSERRITERIE
AREBARBETRITRERRITEER
(Fft 7£26) 1 3K 17 #Y SRAT 17 5K

REZZE—NE+=—A=+—08 ' ~EEHN
R MIRTT 4 % B1536,848,000% 7T (=
T|—=%F : 23,447,000 7T) HERTTAEER
ZEBUARBE(TARBDFERER
HEMIRTT - ARBWIEEERLEN

23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities and bank borrowings
(note 26) as of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$36,848,000 (2013: US$23,447,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

24. B 24. Share Capital
kil S 4=| o |
Number of
shares Amount
TFET
Us$'000
JETE ¢ Authorised :

R-F—=F—A—H-
—E-=F+ZA=+—HK

At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014

—E—WNFEF+=ZA=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
EETREE: Issued and fully paid :
R-ZZE—=F—H—H - At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
—E—=F+ZA=+—HK and 31 December 2014
—T-NEF+=ZA=+—H 415,000,000 4,150

25. f#E
AR R B RBE R R D EE R 2% o

EERBREBPEEEENRE K
o B B B B 90 A 3 BE = D AT 0 K fRh
a2k -

SINEE i s 5 R B OB B B A R A 75 ek
MR Z% -
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25. Reserves
The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the PRC
subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as required
by the relevant PRC statue.

The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.
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25. (&) 25. Reserves (Continued)
RAFE Company
IR 5% E R EE Py
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FETT FETT FETT
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RZE—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 49,568 (1,596) 47972
Az 8 (Bt 5E13) Dividends (note 13) (9,923) — (9,923)
HEEBEANETRS Transactions with owners (9,923) — (9,923)
FEEE Loss for the year — (359) (359)
FEHMEEMK &= Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —

FEEHWEERE Total comprehensive income for

the year = (359) (359)
R=-ZZ—=%+="H=+—H At31December 2013 39,645 (1,955) 37,690
A% B (Bt 5E13) Dividends (note 13) (8,826) — (8,826)
BEEFGAETRS Transactions with owners (8,826) — (8,826)
FEEE Loss for the year — (367) (367)
FEHMEEK = Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —

FEZAK=EBRE Total comprehensive income for
the year = (367) (367)
RZZE—MF+=-HA=+—H At31December 2014 30,819 (2,322) 28,497
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26. B8 26. Borrowings
RE Group
—E-—0OF —E—=F
2014 2013
FTEx FE
US$’000 Us$'000
ELRITEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 21,409 20,284
FERITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 63,402 38,738
BEEERME Assets-backed financing — 130
84,811 59,152
A& Secured 54,692 34,374
=K Unsecured 30,119 24,778
84,811 59,152
—E-@OmF —T-=F
2014 2013
FTEx Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
RITEE Bank borrowings 84,811 59,022
R—FREHNEEERRE Assets-backed financing due
within one year — 130
—FRNEE Repayable within one year 84,811 59,152
bN/N| Company
—F-DmF —F=F
2014 2013
TEx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
BEHRBRIZERITEE Secured and variable-rate bank
borrowings 5,000 —
—FRNEE Repayable within one year 5,000 —
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RZE—NFEF+HA=+T—BER=ZZF—=
F+—_A=+-—H BHTHRTWMEARF
HAREEE THBM R RABNRE
ERTELTUEE  BRETHERSRE
BHEELRHETBER - WASEER
E ERDABEBRIZRERKERE -

AEETHEZEEHEZHENETENR
LZRTFHEFNEERARENR - A&
EAREAEEEBERAZSRTE &£
TIPRAIBEITHEERBRERER - B
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Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, certain banking
facilities are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
certain financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
makes repayments in accordance with the repayment schedule of
the term loans. The Group does not consider that it is probable
for the bank to exercise its discretion to demand repayment for as
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. As at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

rEEH AT
Group Company
—¥-mE —T—=F —¥-0OF —_T—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
TER FET FER FEx
US$'000 Us$'000 US$’000 Us$'000
ARKEE Borrowings in RMB 28,926 24,207 — —
EnEE Borrowings in US$ 51,050 33,656 5,000 —
BT(BTHEE Borrowings in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$") 4,835 1,289 — —
84,811 59,152 5,000 —
—E-mEF ==
2014 2013
ERENX Effective interest rate per annum:
RITEE Bank borrowings 3.65% 3.78%
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26. fHE (&)

ETHEEARTEERRITRENER
ARBRAEEETHEBRBER It
Sh - BEMRITESE RBTRMEDAE
TRITER - BRERE - HEKFR
W BERREBEENLHHEERIR
ERER ZEFCEREERREAY
MEREENT :

26. Borrowings (Continued)

Certain secured bank borrowings and banking facilities were
guaranteed by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
In addition, the secured bank borrowings and banking facilities
were secured by certain bank deposits, bills receivables, other
receivables, property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payment. The carrying values of these assets pledged at the
reporting date are as follows:

— ks —T-=F

2014 2013

FTEx FEx

US$'000 Us$'000

M - HWERFZME Property, plant and equipment 7,400 10,034
FEfT L HbHE & I8 Prepaid land lease payment 951 1,222
EEFRITE R Pledged bank deposits 27,072 14,458
B 1 e U E iR Pledged bills receivables 14,668 4,642
B H i JE YR IE Pledged other receivables — 659
50,091 31,015

45 0 4R 77 2 530,119,000 E T (=& —
=4 :24,778,000% JT) LA R A R 5k AN &
BETHEBAREER -

BEERBREEITABBRSERNS
MR ERRENRERZAESH
MEFE -HESREEFTAEZIRE
b MR IR (B 5522) - ZERBER —F
REH IAARKEEER - FHEED
REATHEE -
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The unsecured bank borrowings of US$30,119,000 (2013:
US$24,778,000) were guaranteed by the Company or certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

The asset-backed financing represented the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which did not meet the de-
recognition requirements in IAS 39. The corresponding financial
assets were included in trade and other receivables (note 22).These
borrowings matured within one year and were repayable in RMB.
Such borrowings have been fully repaid during the year.
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27. EEHIEEE 27. Deferred Tax Liabilities
RE Group
KD IKEF M
TEENE EERBERE HAt st
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
FTET TET FET FTET
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
R-—ZE—=%—A—H At 1 January 2013 181 = = 181
ME 5 8 B Exchange adjustment - 3 = 3
18 &= 115 (i 3E11) Charge to profit or loss (note 11) — 166 28 194
RZZE-—=F+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2013 181 169 28 378
R-Z—mE—H—H At 1 January 2014 181 169 28 378
[E 5 3 Exchange adjustment — 1 — 1
18 & Bk (M &) Charge to profit or loss (note 11) = 604 10 614
RZZT—ME+=R=+—H At 31 December 2014 181 774 38 993

BEFECEMERE  B=FTFNF
—A—HiE - gt BB AR T EREUR
=&K& S BHRTEN - 60715
IR M AR B A B Ff 8 A &) #955,954,000
E T (ZE—=%:44,648,000%T) 25t
S ) BT = A B BT B 22 KA 1 O RE A TE
B REERASEEHEREZ8EN
BOR BZESERZF|AETIER
A 78 R R BB o

PN
RZBE—NE+-A=+—HBR=ZZE—=
F+-A=1+—H ARALELME
ANERZER -

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to US$55,954,000 (2013: US$44,648,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Company

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Company
did not have any material temporary differences.
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28. EZRHMENRKE 28. Trade and Other Payables
KEE Group
—E-—0OF —E—=F
2014 2013
FErx FE
US$’000 Us$'000
= AN Trade payables 8,037 10,321
FER R & Bills payables 6,946 —
Hfh fE N I R FEEHRIE Other payables and accruals 13,991 10,315
28,974 20,636
BEZZEHH HERESHPIE AL Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables of
BNEZEMNRBERERITAOT the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as follows:
—E-—0OF —_E—=
2014 2013
FErx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
90H K AT 90 days or below 4,640 7,491
91£180H 91-180 days 1,033 500
1812 365H 181-365 days 927 1,074
i 3@ 365H Over 365 days 1,437 1,256
8,037 10,321
EERA BEHLEMENFENRE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BEAQNFEES - other payables approximate to their fair values.
AT Company
— ks —T=F
2014 2013
FTER FE7
US$'000 Us$'000
&t IR Accruals 206 200
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Hthemas 29. Other Financial Liabilities
KEE Group
FEx
Us$'000
R=ZE—=%5—H—H" At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014
—E—=F+-A=t+—A8AK
—F—MmE—H—H —
BARERFEHAFHOEIITEZSA Contingent consideration arose from the acquisition of
R E A R S AR E (BT E18d) indefinite-lived technical know-how (note 18d) 1,078
18 2= 0 BR /Y 37 35 [0 £ (B9 5£9) Unwinding of discount charge on provision to profit or
loss (note 9) 38
R=ZZT—MF+=A=+—8 At 31 December 2014 1,116
B G AR 30. Financial Commitments
REMYEYE Operating lease commitment
rEH Group
—E-mF —E—=%F
2014 2013
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
IRAES AT S A & A XY M) R R & (K Future minimum rental payable under
JENFASWT non-cancellable operating lease are
as follows:
1E K Within one year 106 74
FE2ESFE In the second to fifth years — 63
106 137

AEEUKEHEOEARETYE - BO
FHENF—ERF  AREMAHIA
SENEREEZE T HENENRERE
BEY - ZFHOBTERBREMKAME

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
leases terms are between one and five years, with options to renew
the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective landlords. None of these
leases includes any contingent rentals.
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30. B FRSAAIE () 30. Financial Commitments (Continued)
e FE A AIE (E) Operating lease commitment (Continued)
AT Company
—EF-HmF —E=F
2014 2013
FTEx FEx
UsS$'000 Us$'000

R AE S AT S S E A L) R R R & K Future minimum rental payable under

EMASWT : non-cancellable operating lease are
as follows:
1F R Within one year 35 5
BEARAEE Capital commitment
rEH Group
—E-NF —E-=F
2014 2013
TEx Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
B E RETA B B 2N A HE Capital commitments authorised
and contracted for:
EEE Intangible assets 6,341 3,887
BERFZE Construction and equipment 323 127
6,664 4,014
R-E—NF+_A=+—Bk=_ZF—= The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December
F+—A=+—8 RRRHEENE 2014 and 31 December 2013.

= o
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31. ARERE

AEEHHREEELERREZTINS
HUER - ARENEREENEA
MR THRBZZZTAE BEHREF
BEAESENEHEFHASRE -

FERR
AEENEERRIERAESEEX
H e AR BARRAREINNSEESHK
ERRGRERE LR AEEEEER
EREKRIEHEMKERENTGE
& oo

SREEERR AKEEEECRY
EERR HREKEEEEEERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-T—WF+= A =+—H IEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk arising from the
provision of financial guarantees amounted to US$56,768,000.

As of 31 December 2014, 21% (2013: 21%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.
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31.

Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Moreover, the Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and long term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.
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Risk Management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the

MEEZEFERFENBRLT » KEHIR extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
SRERNBERRNMNEGTE - amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
RE Group
—E-NEF
2014

1F R ERRITH

RIEER 12245 2E5F  S5FELE REREBA

Within Total

one year Between Between contractual

oron oneand two and Over undiscounted

demand two years five years five years cash flows

FEx TErn FEn FEx TER

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

BE Borrowings 86,597 — — — 86,597

BH5ENREREMZEE  Trade and bills payables 14,983 — — — 14,983

H b FRIE R EFFFXIE  Other payables and accruals 11,970 — — — 11,970

HibemEE Other financial liabilities - - — 1,500 1,500

113,550 — — 1,500 115,050

—E—=F
2013
156 R SRR B
HIREKRK BlEimAEs

Within Total contractual

one year undiscounted

or on demand cash flows

FE7 FE7

Us$'000 Us$'000

BE Borrowings 60,332 60,332

B EMNHIE N EMNEE Trade and bills payables 10,321 10,321

H fib jE {5 3038 K FE ST AR Other payables and accruals 10,315 10,315

80,968 80,968

Wi o R R A0 RAT B BT A
i B0 58 5 47 #0 1195 70 o5 12 B R )
O

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “within one year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis.
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31. EREE(E) 31. Risk Management (Continued)
REBELRERE(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AT Company
—E-mE
2014
1R BRRFTR
HIRER REREBAG
Total
Within contractual
one year undiscounted
or on demand cash flows
FTEx T
US$°000 US$'000
BE Borrowings 5,138 —
JE &t FRIR Accruals 206 206
#Et Total 5,344 206
—T—=F
2013
1A BRRFTE
HIREKXK HemEMAG
Within Total contractual
one year undiscounted
or on demand cash flows
TET TET
US$'000 Us$'000
JE &t RIR Accruals 200 200

1455 12,1 BY 5 713 28 45 B R 7 8 5 M0
EhE - A EXRFFTELBRAETS
TAFMBEMKEREES -

RARENBAGMEERERENEL
B 15 HE 1R 556,768,000 7T (Z T —=4 :
38,244,000 L) ° B AEZFrET1E - R
TTARAIERZEEREHNMARR AR
REK o I ARRWE R R TKA
REESXEERITEE - At - XAAW
ERZEERETHNEEELESE -
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

The contractual financial guarantees provided by the Company
in respect of the borrowing facilities of its subsidiaries are
US$56,768,000 (2013: US$38,244,000). As assessed by the
directors, it is not probable that the bank would claim the
Company for losses in respect of the guarantee contracts. In
addition, it is not probable that the subsidiaries of the Company
would default repayment of bank borrowings. Accordingly, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under guarantees has been
made.
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Risk Management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 26. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all other
variables were held constant:

o The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 and retained profits as at 31 December 2014
would increase/decrease by US$308,000 (2013: increase/
decrease by US$189,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
borrowings.

o The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2014 would increase/
decrease by US$308,000 (2013: increase/decrease by
US$189,000).
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31. Risk Management (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Company’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014
and accumulated loss as at 31 December 2014 would
decrease/increase by US$25,000 (2013: nil). This is mainly
attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable rate bank borrowings.

The Company’s equity at 31 December 2014 would
decrease/increase by US$25,000 (2013: nil).

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial

position relate to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

AR EE Group
—ZET-NF —=4%F
2014 2013
SEESTm TFET
Us$'000 US$'000
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Financial assets
=i /T>)\ R N e SRR Loans and receivables:

%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘?ﬂ& FRI8 Trade and other receivables 62,043 50,801
ETEE HER1T1F K Pledged bank deposits 27,072 14,458
ReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents 15,819 11,029

104,934 76,288
EHEas Financial liabilities
HEHEKATEN SR EE Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
B Borrowings 84,811 59,152
B 5 & H b E FRIB Trade and other payables 26,953 17,528
111,764 76,680
EATEFAERNES/REE: Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
EMmEemaE Other financial liabilities 1,116 —
112,880 76,680
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Risk Management (Continued)
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
(Continued)

AT Company
—Z—MEF —E—=F
2014 2013
TEx FTET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EMEE Financial assets
B3 K fE U 5k I8 Loans and receivables:
JE W Bt /&8 A B 3R Amount due from a subsidiary 7,828 16,998
ReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents 5,005 3
12,833 17,001
EHEas Financial liabilities
HEEKATEN SR AE Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
=R Borrowings 5,000 —
& 5T 78 Accruals 206 200
5,206 200
BEREE Capital management

AEHEEEEERN  UREFAKENE
BAFELE AREZE(CEEREE
m‘?uﬁﬂ%ﬂx%’“t)i?j(@i& o REEH

BESHEAEFESHETTE o
REBHNERAREREER (BEH E26

BENEE) RERRTE
BREANEHER(BSCET
KRB A)

2 WS EA/NC]
B [

AEBREERBRERBETEATHE °
AEERERKERNEHNEBFEENR
R EEEARBAFLAE &
MEXFABEARE  AEEAERAR
ENFRROREESE  REERTR
R BOFBRNDILEEENRE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
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31. EREE(E) 31. Risk Management (Continued)
EAXREE(H) Capital management (Continued)
HERESAHILNFEERRELERNT The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as
follows:
—E-—mEF —ET—=F
2014 2013
FEx FET
Us$'000 US$'000
& & (Ft 7%26) Borrowings (note 26) 84,811 59,152
BIRE MESEBYW(MIFE23)  Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 23) (15,819) (11,029)
B B IR 1717 3k (BT 5E23) Less: Pledged bank deposits (note 23) (27,072) (14,458)
B B K R E Ath fE U 3R T8 (BJ 5E22)  Less: Pledged other receivables (note 22) — (659)
B Net debt 41,920 33,006
1 S Equity 114,605 110,650
FEERRE X Net debt to equity ratio 36.6% 29.8%
Hihd@mABBEN AT E= Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
Sk sEIsdFTIEE  R=E—UFE= A As disclosed in note 18d, on 28 March 2014, the Group reached
ZHN\R - AREEEEEERGE N an agreement with Novartis to acquire the rights and know-how
WS B e MR B EZE A - R related to pharmaceutical product. The total cash consideration of
S48 4 K EBHES,000,000ETTHE the transaction comprised an upfront payment of US$8,000,000,
HfI 3R - BN & = 458 41,500,000 7T plus additional milestone payments of a total maximum amount
REREMNR(ZHESEARNEEEBE of US$1,500,000, which would be linked to the sales amount
1SRYGH EFEE ) o achieved by the Group subsequently.
AN B AR I 1t 3k AR (B R BERT RE 78 S+t The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that
HNEEARKRNROEBERERSEBNF the Group could be required to make under this contingent
03 7t 1,500,000 Tt ° consideration arrangement is between US$0 and US$1,500,000.
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31. Risk Management (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)
The following tables present financial liabilities included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014 measured at fair value on a recurring basis according to the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

1R 24K FE3K st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000

—“Z—WFE+=-H=+—H 31 December 2014

= Liabilities
RAFEFAEBZNSHE
=

Hth&masE

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Other financial liabilities — —

1,116 1,116

1,116 1,116

R-ZZE—=F+"A=+—H IL\ERQ
FEFENESRMEE -

RAFERYEFR U RRAKEN B R R
W B8 o

As at 31 December 2013, there were no such financial liabilities
measured at fair value.

No gain or loss relating to this contingent consideration has been
recognised in profit or loss for the current year.
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31.

32.

Risk Management (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated
by applying the discounted cash flow. The determination of
fair value is based on certain parameters including the discount
rate, the probability of sales achievement and the period of
sales achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs to fair value
contingent consideration are shown as below:

Significant unobservable
input(s)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to
fair value

Discount rate of 4.7% The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

Probability of sales
achievement, which is
100%

Period of sales
achievement, which
are year 2019 and year
2021

The higher the probability of sales
achievement, the higher the fair
value.

The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the fair
value.

Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

—Z—F —E2—=F
2014 2013
FERn FET
US$'000 Us$'000
BEEXG: Trading transactions :
ENfERHMBATRIMIERX Processing fee expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 330 23
mE R EAREEEm Purchase of goods from fellow
subsidiaries 644 3
mMERMBARHEEE M Sales of goods to a fellow subsidiary 1 —
HEMx5 - Other transactions :
ENRARMEBARESMAX Rental expenses paid to fellow
subsidiaries 33 12
BEWERMEAREMZBUK A  Consultancy fee income received from
fellow subsidiaries 64 27
KWBRRWBARMEREE Acquisition of intangible assets from a
fellow subsidiary — 760
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
The following balances were outstanding at the end of the
reporting period:

—F-mF —F-=F

2014 2013

FER FE

US$'000 Us$'000

[ Z B A R R K Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries 4,420 4,590

FRIEMBEARRAIEREBEE M
REMTIRBMAEA THEEMAOBK - K
BEFEREER 2ERBARERE
B-RN_Z-—NEH_T—=FR" &
SEYEERME QR RKORER
R EE  TELEET XS REMH
X SR fRIHEAR o

RRREFRR UNLBEFTRHIR
EREEERE-—RAEEBHET -

TEEE A B H BN 1007 I B Y
FARFEENEHE -

The amount owed by fellow subsidiaries represented the advances
to suppliers on the goods to be purchased or processing services to
be provided. The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The Group has not made any allowance
for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by fellow
subsidiaries nor has any guarantee been given or received during
2014 or 2013 regarding related party transactions.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial

terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10.
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33. ARFHBERRFE 33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
M AR —RER General information of the subsidiaries
RAIMBARINHMERRNFBAT etails of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reportin
AARMB AR R HREARDFBOT Details of the Company’s subsid t the end of the reporting
period are set out follows.
MR
RIBR/ BRORBERE AREREEEEERER
8 it B TEEXBY EMELFEE RERMNLLH TEXEK
Country/ Particulars of issued Proportion of
Place of and fully paid share ownership interest
incorporation/ Principal place capital/ registered and voting power held
Name establishment of business capital by the Group Principal activities
“BE-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
HERAESR
Interests held directly
PAEBEERER AR RBRAEE TR 29,491,360% REZRK
BREBIETHLER
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited The British Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Virgin Island shares of US$1 each
(the "BVI")
BEEEREDS
Interests held indirectly
RERZHEE BAE TR E (B3 T ) E A AR REER
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERAEE BE IREEIETHE B K REER
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAERE B IREEIETHEERK REZK
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERAER FH AR (B3 T ) i AR REER
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
LHFERQA BB BB 1R E BN TT ) R AR REER
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
AERE (BB)ERAA BB B 100A% REER
FREEVE T L ER
Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$1 each
RERE(BB)AERAA BB BB IREEIETHEBK REER
Lansen Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
JEEYRR(FB)BRDA BEE BB IREEIETHERRK REZRK
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
REBRBRAR B B 1R EE 17 TT B9 i AR REZERK
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

EMAL,
RIBEXR/ ERTRBERE FEEFBHEEEEER
728 1ts B TEEENY TMEXRFHE REE LB TEEK
Country/ Particulars of issued Proportion of
Place of and fully paid share ownership interest
incorporation/ Principal place capital/ registered and voting power held
Name establishment  of business capital by the Group Principal activities
—E-QmE —T-=F
2014 2013
HMEREES
Interests held indirectly
A EER (BB ERAR BE & & 1R (B 17 7T 0 3 38 AR BEEK
Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% — Pharmaceutical business
PAERE(RI)BRAA hE(ffEa) E A R #29,498,0007C BEXR
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
BERVEREFRAA FE(fEb) PE A R #236,000,0007T Be B
Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
BRVEBYRBRMERAA FE(fiEb)  HE A R #28,000,0007C BEXK
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology  The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
ERAEBREFERAA RE(fED) PE A R #35,000,0007C BEXR
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company  The PRC (note ¢) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
ZMNALEEMEXFRAF TR (ffsta) A E A K #3,500,0007T BEEL
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB3,500,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
ERPEBERNRARARA FE (b))  HE A R #1,000,0007C BEXL
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Technology The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
T Notes
(a) RAEBKY ABRRAA (a) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
by REBEKIZIABINGEE D (b)  Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

@ RPEBERIA/PIEERE

FRBEEAMBRRETEMNERE
# o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC

of the year.

BRAEBE B4R iR AR A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 47
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT W& += A=+ —HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

33. AT HE AR FE(E) 33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
REBEREK Composition of the Group
TEXK aE AR 32 PR 3L b B EMBARHE
Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
— ik —T-=F
2014 2013
BEXK a3
Pharmaceutical business The PRC 6 6
BEXG EB
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong 1 —
BB e
Investment holding Hong Kong 5 5
RE R RERELES
Investment holding The BVI 5 5
17 16
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